157-10014-10178

[2023 RELEASE UNDER THE PRESIDENT JOHN F. KENNEDY ASSASSINATION RECORDS ACT OF 1992]

JFK Assassination System
Identification Form

AGENCY :
RECORD NUMBER :

RECORD SERIES :

Agency Information

SSCIA
157-10014-10178

MISCELLANEOUS RECORDS OF THE CHURCH COMMITTEE

AGENCY FILENUMBER :  07-M-83
Document Information
ORIGINATOR: SSCIA
FROM:
TO:
TITLE :
DATE:  00/00/1975
PAGES: 161
SUBJECTS :
CASTRO, FIDEL ) :
LUMUMBA, PATRICE, ASSASSINATION
CIA
DOCUMENT TYPE: REPORT
CLASSIFICATION :  Declassified
RESTRICTIONS :  1B; IC
CURRENTSTATUS:  Redact
DATE OF LASTREVIEW :  05/31/2000
OPENING CRITERIA :
COMMENTS : CCBox 73

vo.l

HW 509535 Docld:32423566

Page 1



This document is made available through the declassification efforts
and research of John Greenewald, Jr., creator of:

The@BIaCioVatlt

The Black Vault is the largest online Freedom of Information Act (FOIA)
document clearinghouse in the world. The research efforts here are
responsible for the declassification of hundreds of thousands of pages
released by the U.S. Government & Military.

Discover the Truth at: http://www.theblackvault.com


http://www.theblackvault.com

Date
Page

08/07/95

JFK ASSASSINATION SYSTEM
IDENTIFICATION FORM

AGENCY INFORMATION

AGENCY : SSCIA
RECORD NUMBER : 157-10014-10178
RECORDS SERIES : MISCELLANEOUS RECORDS OF THE CHURCH COMMITTEE
AGENCY FILE NUMBER : 07-M-83 ’

' DOCUMENT INFORMATION

ORIGINATOR : SSCIA
FROM :
TO
TITLE :
DATE : 00/00/75
PAGES : 161
SUBJECTS : LUMUMBA, PATRICE, ASSASSINATION

CIA

CASTRO, FIDEL

DOCUMENT TYPE : REPORT
CLASSIFICATION : TOP SECRET
RESTRICTIONS : REFERRED
CURRENT STATUS : POSTPONED IN FULL
DATE OF LAST REVIEW : 01/19/99
OPENING CRITERIA :
: CC Box 73

COMMENTS

[R] - ITEM IS RESTRICTED .

H¥ 509553 Docld:32423566 Page 2



MA N e ’ . C e S R : } .
T S O A2 i
y : R i

INTERVIEW AND MEETING SUMMARY = —oommem |
V v : - ' B “kaf%.i}ljvm,_w
4 CEY 'ﬁéc". | ;

...........................................................

INTERVIEW WITH:

REGARDING: Lum

' DATE“TIME‘LOCATION:' August 20, 1975 - 12:30-3:30 p.m. -
Room ‘608, Carroll Arms )

" HAS OR SHOULD BE DIGESTED:
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'MEMORANDUM | T

TO: ~ TFiles
FROM: Frederick Baron
DATE: August 20, 1975

SUBJECT: Interview with Congo Chief of Station: Lumumba Assassination
Plan and Related Events in the Congo

Staff Members Present: Burton Wides, Rhett Dawson,
Frederick Baron

The foildwing is a summary of the contents of an interview
conducted with a former CIA officer concerning a period (1960-1961)
in which he was Chief of Station in the Congo. The interview was
conducted from 12:30 p.m. to 3:30 p.m. today in Room 608 of the
Carroll Arms Hotel. |

At the request of the Chief of Station (CO0S), we agreed to >
take his testimony under alias. He will be referred to hereinafter

as '"'COS".

COS GOES TO CONGO AND RECEIVES MESSENGER FROM HEADQUARTERS

COS said that he arrived in the Congo.as Chief of Station in
early July (probably the 10th orlllth) 1960. COS said that before
he left Headquarters for the Congo he did not talk with either
Richard Bisseil (DDP) or Bronson Tweedy (Chief, Africa Division)
about the prospect of assassinating Patrice Lumumba. Soon after
arriving in the Congo, COS was asked to return to Headquarters in
late July for briefings. He said there was no talk of assassination

at those meetings, either.

[
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After his return to the Congo, probably in early September,
COS received a cable from Headquarters that said, in his words,
"someone I would recognize would appear to give me instructions for
a mission I would carry out." Soon thereafter Sidney Gottlieb
arrived in the Congo to meet with COS. COS recognized Gottlieb
from the Technical Services Division at the CIA, and it was made
clear that Gottlieb was the messenger referred to in the cable.

| Gottlieb and COS met in COS's new apartment. COS dated this

meeting by the fact that he had moved into this apartment in early
September, 1960 . COS said that Gottlieb informed him that lethal
biological agents had been developed for the assassination of
Lumumba. COS believes that Gottlieb brought a poison virus and
probably two other lethal biological agents with him in his bag.
But COS said it was possible that the biological wea?bns arrived
shortly thereafter. COS said that Gottlieb also provided rubber
gloves, 'a gauze mask, and probably a hypodermic syringe -- equipment
for administering the poisonous substances. The poisonous substances
were to be injected into food, drink, toothpaste, or anything else
that Lumumba might ingest. COS did not remember the appearance of
the biological agents themselves, but he did recall that there were
approximately three different types of lethal substances provided
to him.

COS said that he was ''taken aback'” by Gottlieb's assignment
to him of the assassination of Lumumba. COSvsaid that he was a
junior Chief of Station, and he wanted to make sure to 'pin down"

the chain of authority for this assignment because "I had never
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heard of anything like this." COS's best recollection was that he

had the following interchange with Sidnéy Gottlieb:

C0S: Where did this brilliant idea come from?

Gottlieb: The top.

COS: Who at the top?
Gottlieb: The Director has instructions from President

Eisenhower. -

COS said that he could ﬁot recall the exact language of the
interchange, although this was his bes;ﬁreédllection. He said
Gottlieb made it clear that the President wanted to find a way to
remove Lumumba from the scene. He said that when Gottlieb explained
the source of authorization for the assassination plot, he made it
clear that the President was the source. COS said it was possible
that Gottlieb uséd a euphemism, but it was more likely that he
mentioned either '"President Eisenhower" or "the President." 1In
response to a question from the staff to paraphrase again the import
of Gottlieb's instruction to him, COS said that Gottlieb told him
something to the effect that "I am giving you instructions on highest
authority to assassinate Lumumba any way you can." COS said that
Gottlieb did not insist that the assassination had to take place by
means of the biological agents he was supplying.

COS said that this was not an exploration of the possibility
of assassination or the establishment of a mere capability for assassi-
nation. '"They were serious about it . . . it was clear that the

policy decision to assassinate Lumumba had been made.'" COS said
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he was not awaiting any further ''go signal" in order to proceed
with the assassination operation. |

COS said that Gottlieb told him that there was to be no connec-
tion Qith the Unitéd States if the biological agents were to be
employed. COS had an asset in the Congo that he considered for
use as an intermediary in this project, although he never moved
forward to make the asset knowledgeable of the project. COS said
that, whether or not he used an intermediary to accomplish the
assassination, Gottlieb made it clear that "I was to do it or find
a way to do it."

COS asked Gottlieb when the lethal biological agents would
lose their potency. Gottlieb said this would happen over a long
period of time. COS said that he did not remember exactly what
’the substances looked like, nor whether Gottlieb brought it in his
bag, and this would not be surprising because "in those days there
were no customs checks in the Congo."

COS locked the virus in a safe at the Station to which only
he had access. He remembers taking the virus from the safe sometime -
later -- probably after the arrest or death of Lumumba -- to disposé
of it by burying it near the Congo River. COS said that he had no |
tratning in chemistry and felt ill-equipped to deal with poisons.

COS asked Gottlieb if the poison left traces. Gottlieb told him
that it left the traces of a normal disease.

COS said he was never subjected to great pressure to use thg

poison. COS added that, when he spoke with Gottlieb, "I don't
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think I agreed to use it." Although he also said that he did not
tell Gottlieb that he would refuse to use it. |

COS said that even though Gottlieb had told him that clearance
for the assassinatioﬁ of Lumumba had come from the President and
the DCI, he wanted verification from Headquarters of an assignment
of such magnitude. COS said: "I responded to Headquarters with a
double-talk message, saying that I had met the messenger and re-
questing confirmation. I then received a cable coﬁtaining double-
talk confirmation, something like 'your assumption confirmed.'"

COS said "I never knew who was sending me these cables. They
also said 'Director' and I sent my cables with a special slug. My
cables were probably marked to 'Director' which is never actually
seen by the DCI. COS thought that he destroyed his copy of .cables
on this subject on instructions céntained in those cables. He said
that only a single copy of the cables had existed at the Congo
Station. COS said that he was instructed by Gottlieb that he was
not to discuss this assassination mission even with his own deputy.
COS said that he did not discuss the operation with Glenn Fields.
He also said that he would not have discussed the opération with
Dr. Lester Houck because Houck was removed as Branch Chief in early
fall due to dissatisfaction with his perforﬁance.

COS said that he thought an assassination effort was "a bad
idea, both morally and practically.'" However, cos said that he
may not have expressed his grave concern to Gottliéb because he was
so taken aback at receiving the assignmentf COSvthought that he

told Gottlieb that he did not have a good means of access to Lumumba .

N

HY¥ 50955 DocId:32423566 Page 8 ~



-6-

COS recalls raising the subject of assassination with
Gottlieb on subsequent occasions outside the Congo only in the
context of his (COS's) feeling: '"Thank God I never had to use it."
COS did not remember if Gottlieb mentioned Richard Bissell as
a sourée of authority or approval for the assassination operation.
COS-does not recall that anyone other than the President and the
DCI were indicated as the source of authority for the assassination

operation. -

0 'DONNELL IS DISPATCHED FROM HEADQUARTERS TO THE CONGO

COS recalled the fact that Justin O'Donnell arrived in the
Congo from CIA Headquarters approximateiy in October of 1960. COS
said that O0'Donnell "camé to eliminate Lumumba." COS did not re-
call whether O'Donnell\recélled a conversation with Richard Biséell.

COS said that, in anticipating O'Donnell's arrival, he had
the impression that O'Donnell was coming to aid in the removal of
Lumumba. COS said, "I wondered if Headquafters thought I was drag-
ging my feet and that I might be relieved."

COS said he did not remember discussing his meeting with
Sidney Gottlieb with O'Donnell but he simply does not have a
specific recollection. COS said he would not dispute O 'Donnell's
testimony that COS had made O'Donnell aware that a poison virus
was in his safe. COS said thét assassination was 'not excluded"
as one of the means of femoving Lumumba that O'Donnell might use. '

But COS said that he was not certain that assassination was included

as one of O0'Donnell's tools. COS said that he may have discussed
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with O'Donnell a plan to snatch Lumumba from "protective custody."
But he does not specifically remember this.

COS said that "O'Donnell did not seem fq do anything most of
the time, and I didn't take him very seriously. He spent a lot of
time drinking."' COS said that he was not aware of any action
O0'Donnell took to carry out an assassination or a '"'snatch" of
Lumumba. |

COS said that the assassination plan had struck him from the
beginning as a bad idea, so he moved slowly on it. "I showed some
action to Headquarters by sending cables, but never pushed it."

COS said that he asked-O'Donnell fo clear with him any major
actions he was contemplating in the Congo. COS Believes that
'0'Donnell was in the Congo from September until approximately

Christmas.

LUMUMBA 's ESCAPE

COS said that Lumumba's escapé from "protective custody" was
a surprise to him. He said thatbthe CIA Station hadvndthing to do
with it, aléhough they inveétigated the incident.

COS said "I was in touch with many official Congolese about
where Lumumba was and how he got out. But I did not get much good
information. It was assumed that Lumumba waé going to Stanleyville.
‘The Congole;e flew troops tovpoints that he would have to pass on
this route. -I remember‘reviewing maps of these routes with the
Congolese." .

COS added, "I left the Congo for Rome because of the prospect

that Lumumba might start an uprising'against 'white devils.' But
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when I arrived in Rome I reéd that Lumumba was captured. I learned
from Mobutu and Casavubu that Lumumba would be imprisoned in Thys-

ville,

COS MEETS WITH BISSELL, TWEEDY, AND KARAMESSINES IN ROME

In November 196C, while Lumumba was at large, COS flew to Rome
to meet with Richard Bissell, Bronson Tweedy and Thomas Karamessines
(then Chief of Station in Rome) for a briefing session on events
in the Congo. The mee&ing took place at Karamessines' house. COS
femembers a general discussion of events surrounding Lumumba's
escape and of the situation in the Congo, but he does not recall
any specific discussion of assassination. He said, '"Perhaps we
did discuss assassination, I simply don't recall. I was tired. I

had flown all day. And I wasn't in favor of assassination."

BRONSON TWEEDY

' COS assumed that Tweedy was knowledgeable of the assassination
plan. However, he does not recall specifically discussing the plan

with Tweedy prior to the delivery of the poison or while he was in

bpossession of the poison. COS said, "I did talk with Bronson

Tweedy much later about it to the effect that 'thank God nothing

was ever done.'"

COS did not remember whether Tweedy came to the Congo before
Lumumba's death. COS thought that he must have come later. COS

said, however, that if Tweedy had come earlier he probably would

~have asked Tweedy about the assassination mission.

W 504955
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COS INFORMS DCI. SCHLESINGER OF ASSASSINATION PLAN

COS said that in response to Schlesinger's request for reports
on ''questionable activities" within the Agency, COS met with'him.
CCS said that he informed Schlesinger verbally that he had received
instructions to try to assassinate Lumumba. COS said that he did
not mentioﬁ a poison virus to Schlesinger. COS said that Schlesinger
did not make a response to this information. COS was unaware of

any follow-up that was taken due to his briefing of Schlesinger.

OTHERS KNOWLEDGEABLE OF THE ASSASSINATION PLAN

COS said that he assumed that TWEEDY, BISSELL, and DULLES‘were
witting of the assassination plan. COS said that he did have
occasion to see ALLEN DULLES from time to time, but he does not
remember discussing assassination in any form‘with DULLES.

CoSs said, "I might have mentioned the assassination plan to

1

COLBY when he became Director." However, COS does not have any
specificvrecollectioﬁ of a conversation with COLBY.

COS does not think he informed RICHARD HELMS 6f the assassina-
tion plan. | )

COS said that he was never interviewed by the INSPECTOR GENERAL
in 1967 in the preparation of the IG Report on‘Assassiﬁétions.

COS said that he never discussed the assassination plan with

ARNOLD SILVER.

PROJECT ZRRIFLE AND AGENT QJWIN

COS said he never discussed the assassination plan with William
Harvey (the Director of Project ZRRIFLE). COS said he never discussed

assassination capabilities or assets with Harvey.
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COS did not recall agent QJWIN. He did recall that 0 'Donnell
may have brought an asset into the Congo to help him. He said,
ﬁowever, that based on our representation that QIJWIN was in the

Congo in the fall of 1960, he must have known of QJWIN's activities.

WIROGUE
COS does not remember the true name of agent WIROGUE nor why
or how he came to the Congo. When his recollection was fefreshed
by seeing cable traffic, COS said that WIROGUE was a difficult man.
to handle. For a short time, WIROGUE became a majof in the Congolese
Army. COS said that he had wanted ROGUE ﬁo pull together a sur-
veillance team. COS did not recall discussing WIROGUE with O Donnell.
COS's only specific recollection is of belng in WIROGUE's
apartment and discussing an assassination squad. COS does not
think that he mentioned the use of QJWIN in connection with‘this
"execution équad.” COS said that it was conceivable that he had
approached WIROGUE with the idea of using him against Lumumba.
But COS remembers he came to mistrust WIROGUE and felt that WIROGUE

did not know what he was doing. COS also said it was unlikely

- that he would have sent the cable about WIROGUE's approach to

QJWIN in 6rdinary CIA channels as he did if he thought this related
to the actual assassination mission. Instead, it was merely

evidence that WIROGUE was out of contrbl.

. MOVING LUMUMBA TO KATANGA

HW 50955

COS recalled that troops in Thysville mutinied while Lumumba

was being held there. COS was in contact with various Congolese

DonId:32423566 Page 13



-11-

officials and discovered that Casavubu and Mobutu had decided to
fly to Thysville to put down the munity. COS attempted to con-
vince them not to go together. They did succeed in putting down
the mutiny. |

COS did not learn that Lumumba was to be moved to Katanga
until after it héppened. Cos sai& his discussiqns with Mobutu
about Mobutu's intentions for Lumumba left COS with the impression
that Lumumba might be executed.

CoS said‘thaf Jack Hasey was the Acting‘Base Chief in

Elizabethville, and was succeeded by David Whipple, who became

" Base Chief in Katanga. COS also said that Ambassador Clare H.

BIEF BMROREA

Timberlake worked closely with COS, but they never discussed with

‘him the general question of assassination.

TESTIMONY UNDER ALIAS

:At the outset of the inﬁerview, the Committee staff agreed
to honor COS's request to testify under alias. COS, who is still
in private‘enterbrise in Zaire, said he would be in personal
danger there if he were linked to this story. He said, "Thgy
might make me take the big high jump. I've been on the 'zap list'

before."

TnrTd:372433566 2 Page 14



7 AEFIDAVIY 17. l\ow T Lakhe

. a ..7. ORIED:
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA INVENT 7 [77
' an

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA SS:

BY

eeI, c. Douglas Dillon, being first duly sworn, do upon oath

:»Notary Publin

. District of Columbia '

depose and state.

From June 1959 until early Januarj 1961 I sefved as Under

Secretarxy of State. During approxin ately 35-40 percent of
that time, I served as Acting Secretary of State because of
Secretary Herter's absence from Washington.

Secretary Herter, who preceded me as Under Secretary of State,
had served as the State Department representative on the 54/12
Committee, a predecessor of the present Forty Committee. When
I became Under Secretary, the President asked me to retain my

.earlier responsibilities for forelgn economic policy. Accord-

ingly, the Number 3 position in the Department of State was
designated as Under Secretary for Political Affairs. Robert
Murphy was appointed to this position and took over the State
Department's respon51b111t1es on the 54/12 Commlttee.

Because of the frequency of my service as Acting Secretary of
State, I was kept regularly informed of important 54/12 Com-

mittee decisions. On occasion I met with the 54/12 Committee
and partlc1pated in its deliberations..

During this entire period I have no recollection of any dis-
cussions or decisions looking toward the assassination of
either Generalissimo Trujillo or Prime Minister Castro.

On one occasion in late July or early August‘of 1960, shortly
after Patrice Lumumba's visit to Washington, I attended a meet-

. ing in the Pentagon at which the overall Congo problem was dis-

cussed. During the discussion, which covered a great variety
of matters, my recollection is that a guestion regarding the
possibility of an assassination attempt against Lumumba was

briefly raised. The CIA representative indicated that the Agency
did not undertake this sort of operation. This ended considera-
tion of this subject. With this one exception .I never heard any

discussion of assassination attempts against anyone.

Dated thls.?/ day of May, 1875.

//éf,‘, f///

C. Dougfas Dlllon

Subscribed and sworn to before me S , S
this.~/ day of May 1975 > L Y\mﬁﬁflfjf} N\6¢
) . : ‘ o

\7.,..
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MEMORANDUM : .

70 William G. Miller
' Fritz Schwarz

Curt Smothers
Bill Bader
Burt Wides
Rhett Dawson

FROM: - Frederick-Baron

RE: Douglas Dillon Interview

DATE:  August 28, 1975
I spoke toddy.by phone with Douglas Dillon, who was on vacation
in Maine, cohcérhing_a paragréph in an affidavit he supplied to the
- Rockefeller Commission ‘on May 21, 1975. The paragraph records Dillon's
recollection that
"On one occasion in late July or early August of 1960, shortly
after Patrice Lumumba's visit to Washington, 1 attended a meet-
ing in the Pentagon at which the overall Congo problem was dis-
cussed. During the discussion, which covered a great variety of
matters, my recollection is that a question regarding the possi-
bility of an assassination attempt against Lumumba was briefly .
raised. The CIA representative indicated that the Agency did
not undertake this sort of operation. This ended consideration
of this subject. With this one exception I never heard any
discussion of assassination attempts against anyone.”
I explored the subject of this meeting generally with Mr. Dillon on the
phone énd set an appointment for him to review documents and testify on
Tuesday, September.2,_at 3:00 p.m. in Room G 308.
On the phohe Dillon gave the following background information
on the meeting at-the Penﬁégon:'
1. This was not a small meeting; eight or ten people attended.

He did not think it was a meeting of a small body. He said it was

not a Special Group meeting or NSC meeting. . But he was.clear that

H¥ 50955 DocId:32423566 Page 16 7
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RS A high—level:meéting du& to the-partiCipants.~

e 2. .He believes the participahts included the Secretary of

w— - —-=nge because Dillon's recollection is firm on the fact that

—— -z zwmeeting took place in the office of the Secretary of Defense.

-e- - ———ici did not rémember whether Allen Dulles éttendéd the meeting,

et T

— - ._he said "top CIA people were present'. Dillon said Richard

- —zzzell was probably présent. Dillon does not‘reéall a man named

——-——__--=rt Johnson, nor does he recall whether such a man was present

~h2 meeting, but he said that we might be able to refresh his

- muilection by giving him more backgreund on Robert Johnson.

= - - did not mentiQn on the phone the néture of Robert Johnson's

- —--=imony before the Committee; I simply asked if‘Johnson was

-zent at the meeting.)

o 3. The mention of thé subject of assassinating Lumumba was
f;;_wég:: in the general context, Dillon said, of Lumumbaﬂs,vi;it to
_ommz . inited States, which had "convinced us that Lumumba was

. _=nopathic, not in a well—balgnced mental state. After his

—==—:t we wondered whether there was any way of Chénging the scenery :

[—— . ne

- zhe Congo." Dillon said the subject was raised in the general

USRIURE

e 2t of "eliminating Lumumba', But the discussion did not
~—e—-—-22d .as far as mentioning means to be used.
4. Dillon said that the response of the "CIA representative"

e——— - 'not necessarily a .moral objection to assassination but was

-z in the sense of indicating that the CIA did not have that
.= of capacity'.

e e Dillon did not recall who the CIA representative was who

-= the remark.

DocId: 32423566 Page 17



- September 23, 1975.

Dear Mr. Dawson:

I enclose herewith Mr. Dillon's signed and notarized

affidavit.

Sincerely yours,

Dorothy de Borchgrave

Mr. Rhett Dawson

Senate Select Commiittee
Room G-308

New Senate Office Bulldmg
Washington, D. C, 20510

Wy A R
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| \44&(/1
: - b
State of New Yotk )

g

County of )&"“ %4’ﬁ/f

C. Douglas Dillon, being duly Sworn, deposes and
says:. I have’read the attached statement.consisting of
two pages prepared by Rhett. Dawson, - Counsel to the Scnate
Select Fommlttce to Study Governmental Operations ‘With Respect
to Intelllgence'Act1v1tles, based upon my conversation with
"~ him on'September 15, 1975, and I hereby'adopt and ratify

‘this statement which is true and correct to my direct knowledge.

-

C Douglas Dlllon

: | ' N
¥ Sworn to hefore me this )3
‘day of September, 1975.

(Coali & Yitadn

Notary Public

CECILIA A, VERDON
Notary Public, Stcte of New York
No. 31-4095135
Cuolified in Mew York County .
Commission Expires March 30, 1977

Hy s'i '
&‘955 DODIH:H‘JJ?QR"“



STATEMENTS BY C: DOUGLAS DILLON
TO RHETT‘DAWSON ON SEPTEMBER 15, 1975

"I, C. Douglas Diilon,‘do wisﬁ to make the following
statement. | .

1. On September 15, 1975 I was shown by Rhett Dawson,
Counsel, Senaté'SelectFCommittee-to Study Governmental Oéerations
With.Respect'to-lﬁtélligente Activities, what he represented to
me to}be'doc&ments of the'Nétional Security.Council of the bhelow
‘ ddteé; .
| Exhibit 1. Minutes of the 451st Meeting

o of the
4-Vat10nal Security Council

held in the Cabinet Room of The Whlte House
on Friday, July 5, 1960, 9:00-11:00 a.m,

(Approved by the Pr051dent on July 19 19 1960)

‘Exhibit 2. Memorandum of Dlscus51on at the 452nd Meetlng
of the National Security Council,
Thursday, July 21, 1960.

" Exhibit 3. Memorandum of Discussion at the 456th Meeting
of the National Security Council,
Thursday, August 18, 1960

Exhibit 4. Minutes of the 456th Meeting
of the
National Security Council
held in the Cabinet Room of The White louse
on Thursday, August 18, 1960, 9:00-11:00 a.m.
(Approved by the President on August 24, 1960)

Exhibit 5. Minutes of the 458th Meeting
' : of the
National Security Council
held in the Cabinet Room of The White touse
on Wednesday, September 7, 1960, 2:30-4:30 p.m.

(Approved by the Pre€1dent on September 13, 1960

Memorandum of Discussion at the 460th Meeting
of the National Security Council,
Wednesday, September 21, 1960




'ffﬁ -2~ o : fgﬁ?

2. The do'cunﬁents shoWn_to ‘me do not in any way i:efresh my
reéqllection beyond the statements cOn.tai,ned therein as to events related to the
.. Qongo in the summer and eariy fall of 1960, I still do not have an independent
reco_llection of any spec_i;ficv co’r;versation regarding the aséassinétion of Patrice
‘Lumumba other than that described in mj affidavit to the Rockefeller Commission
and in my testimony before the Seleét'Corﬁmittee on September 2,

- 3. 1was informed by Mr. .DawsoAnAtﬁat Mr Robert Johnson has testified
that he recollected a s.tatément 'by’ President Eisenhower at an NSC m.eeting which |
he co'nst‘rued‘as being an order for the assa‘séinat’ion of Lumumba. Aftérv seeing
‘the documenté listed abOVe [ am of the oﬁinion that iﬁ is most likely that _the NSC
meeting of A-ugus# 18, 1960 is fhe meétir}‘g refer.r_,g;c:l‘ to by Mr. Johnson. Although
the record shows fhat [ was present at that meeting | héve no personal recollection
of any such statement or ordér by the President.

4, 1 note that as to the Memorandum of-Discussidn at the 456th Meeting
- of tﬁe National Security Council, Thursday, August 18, 1960 (reference C, aboive)
a page or pages immediately before the second page of the exhibit.seem to be missing.

5. It is my understanding that the six exhibits noted above, will be

appendéd to this affidavit for filing by the Select Committee.

Prepared by me on this 23rd day of September, 1975.

Rhett Dawson,

Counsel

Senate Select Committee to Study
Government Operations With Respect to
Intelligence Activities
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MEMORANDUM

TO : The FileS INVEMTORIED:
From: Frederick D. Baron oN 7Y%j77
B E4
Date: September 5, 1975
Re: Interview with James Douglas on Lumumba Assassination Case.

I spoke by phone today with James Douglas, who was
Deputy Secretary of Defense in the Eisenhower Administration
from early December 1959 until January 21, 1961.

Mr. Douglas served under DOD Secretary Thomas Gates.

, I interviewed Mr. Douglas because of a reference to him
in Douglas Dillon's testimony (Dillon, p.19). Dillon said that
in a phone conversation with Gates about the Pentagon meeting
(at which Dillon said someone raised the gquestion of assassi-
nating Lumumba) Gates named James Douglas as a person likely
to have attended such a meeting.

Never Heard Suggestion of Assassination

Mr. Douglas said that during his tenure in office, he
"never heard a suggestion of the assassination of Lumumba raised
in his presence. "I never heard speculation that it was even
on anyone's mind," he said.

- Pentagon Meeting

Mr. Douglas does not recall a meeting at the Pentagon
in the summer of 1960 (as recounted by Douglas Dillon) where
the guestion of assassinating Lumumba was raised. Mr. Douglas
says that it was possible that he attended such a meeting, but
he has no recollection of it.

Special Group Meetings

Mr. Douglas attended Special Group'meetings with some
regularity. Freguently, however, these meetings were attended
by Mr. Irwin, who was Assistant Secretary of Defense for Inter-

national Security Affairs during that period. Douglas said
that Irwin was "more actively in contact with the State Depart-
ment and the CIA during this time." (Irwin is now practicing

law in New York.)

Mr. Douglas said that the gquestion of assassination of
Lumumba was not raised in his presence at a Special Group meeting.
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‘Memo to Files
September 5, 1975
Page Two

I read to him a quote from the Special Grompp minutes of
September 8, 1960. -Douglas was in attendance at this
meeting. Mr. Gordon Gray was gquoted as saying that he hoped
that CIA people were "fully aware of the top-level feeling

in Washington that vigorous action would not be amiss.”
Douglas had no independent recollection of this remark or the
discussion to which it related.

I_\I_ote :

I indicated to Mr. Douglas that it probably would not
be necessary to call him to testify on the Lumumba matter.
Mr. Douglas' phone numbers are: (617) 693-1353 (until September
29) and (312) 726-2452 (office in Chicago).

cc: Rhett Dawson
Burt Wides
Fritz Schwarz
Curt Smothers

FDB/dsm
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MEMORANDUM

To: The Files INVENTORIEDS
From: Frederick D. Baron op %f%h77
e
BY =
Date: September 5, 1975 ,
Re: Interview with James Douglas on Lumumba Assassination Case.

I spoke by phone today with James Douglas, who was
Deputy Secretary of Defense in the Eisenhower Administration
from early December 1959 until January 21, 1961.

Mr. Douglas served under DOD Secretary Thomas Gates.

I interviewed Mr. Douglas because of a reference to him
in Douglas Dillon's testimony (Dillon, p.19). Dillon said that
in a phone conversation with Gates about the Pentagon meeting
(at which Dillon said someone raised the question of assassi-
nating Lumumba) Gates named James Douglas as a person likely
to have attended such a meeting.

Never Heard Suggestion of Assassination

Mr. Douglas said that during his tenure in office, he
"never heard a suggestion of the assassination of Lumumba raised
in his presence. "I never heard speculation that it was even
on anyone's mind," he said.

- Pentagon Meeting

Mr. Douglas does not recall a meeting at the Pentagon
in the summer of 1960 (as recounted by Douglas Dillon) where
the question of assassinating Lumumba was raised. Mr. Douglas
says that it was possible that he attended such a meeting, but
he has  no reccllection of it.

Special Group Meetings

Mr. Douglas attended Special Group meetings with some
regularity. Frequently, however, these meetings were attended
by Mr. Irwin, who was Assistant Secretary of Defense for Inter-
national Security Affairs during that period. Douglas said
that Trwin was "more actively in contact with the State Depart-
ment and the CIA during this time.” (Irwin is now practicing
law in New York.) '

Mr., Douglas said that the question of assassination of
Lumumba was not raised in his presence at a Special Group meeting.
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Memo to Files
September 5, 1975
Page Two

I read to him a quote from the Special Gropmpp minutes of
September 8, 1960. Douglas.was in attendance at this
meeting. Mr. Gordon Gray was quoted as saying that he hoped
that CIA people were "fully aware of the top-level feeling

in Washington that vigorous action would not be amiss.”
Douglas had no independent recollection of this remark or the
‘discussion to which it related.

Note:

I indicated to Mr. Douglas that it probably would not
be necessary to call him to testify on the Lumumba matter.
Mr. Douglas' phone numbers are: (617) 693-1353 (until September
29) and (312) 726-2452 {(office in Chicago).

cc: Rhett Dawson
Burt Wides
Fritz Schwarz
Curt Smothers

FDB/dsm
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FRANK CHURCH, IDAHO, CHAIRMAN .~ - ) \‘\/ / ] A /\,:’
JOHN G, TOWER, TEXAS, VICE CHAIRMAN .~ I (\ ‘(:. Fagl 3 - ;\ L /
. P ;

LT

. e " e .
WAl;'rER D. HUDDLESTON, KY. CHARLES MC C. MATHIAS, JR., MD, )
il?OBERT MORGAN, N.C. RICHARD S. SCHWEIKER, PA. 'Y
e HA‘?T. cc\:cl,l..Lh\M G. MI:LLER STAFF RIRECTOR . . ’ ?J tnt{eh ﬁfafes %ena%e
FTGURTIS . SMOTHERS, MINORITY COUNSEL SELECT COMMITTEE TO
STUDY GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS WITH
RESPECT TO INTELLIGENCE ACTIVITIES
(PURSUANT TO S. RES. 21, 94TH CONGRESS)
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20510
11 October 1975 ,
INVENTORIED: ' |
» N 3 /3 7 7 . i
Mr. John N. Trwin II e G o
Patterson, Belknap and Webb . S 5
30 Rockefeller Plaza ' p
New York, New York 10020 ;
N §
i
Dear Mr. Irwin: %
' {
Thank you for sending the rewritten version of your affida- i
vit. All of the changes you have made are perfectly satis- !
factory and accurately reflect my understanding of the state-
ments you made on September 22.
I am enclosing the statement with my 31gnature so that you
may .proceed to sign and swear to it.
Due to the'sénsitivity of the subject matﬁer, it would be
appreciated if'you will not retain a copy-of the affidavit. A
copy will remain on file at the Commlttee and acce851ble to you
at any time.
I look -forward to receiving the sworn statement. Once
again many thanks for your cooperation and careful attention
to this matter.
Sincerely, r~“t>
71/66?)7 /&/ < S )VL AN
Frederick D. Baron ’
Special Assistant to the
Chief Counsel
fa ...; . - — — E
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STATEMENTS OF JOHN N. IRWIN II

TO FREDERICK D. BARON ON SEPTEMBER 22, 1975

Throughout 1960 and until the end of the Eisenhower
Administratien,vI served as Assistant Secfetary'of DefenSet
.for International SecufitylAffairs. My current business
eddreSS'is'e/o Patterson, Balknap & Webb, 30 Rockefeller
Plaza, New York, N.Y. Looéo. |

1. On September 22, 1975 in my office I-reviewed with
Mr. Baron the fellowing docdments'in~an‘attempt to refresh
my recollection'on»discussione that teok piace at certain
‘governmental meetings: the Memorandum for the Record oft
the Special Group meetings of June 30, l960kand August
25, 1960; the Memorandum forithebRecord of the National
Security Meetings of July 21, 1960, August 18, 1960, and

September 21, 1960; and the Record of Action of the NSC

: Meetihgs of July 15, 1960 and September 7, 1960. These

- documents indicate that I attended all of these meetings

except the NSC meeting of August 18, 1960, which Mr. Hadyn
Williams ‘of‘iSA attended. I also reviewed the affidavit
'of C. Déuglas Dillon dated May 21, 1975 which refers, EEEEEA
alia, to a meeting'at the Pentagon in the suﬁmer Qf 1960.

2. Even efter attempting to refresh my recollection

by rev1ew1ng the above-mentioned documents, I still have no

' dlrect recollectlon of the dlSCUSSlonS which they memorialize.
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I do not recall any discussion of any assassinatioﬁ plan
connectéd,to¢the United States Go&ernﬁent during the entire
course of my government service. I do not recall ever
hearing of the.CIA adopting any assassination plan, nor do I
recall ever ﬁearing theAPresident make a statement that
could be construed as an order for the assassination of
Patrice Lumumﬁa.
3.; In answer to a quéstion from Mr. Baron I said that
.in my épinion the language used in the Memorahdum fof‘the
RéCordvof £he Special Group Méeting of August 25, 1960 ié
sufficiently broad so it could be interpretea to cover a
~discussion of asSaséination:
I£ was finally agreed thét planning for the
Congo would not necessarily rule out "con-
sideration" of any particular kind of activity
which might contribute to getting rid of
Lumumba. '
However, I do not remember any such discussion, nor do I have
any'direct recollection of the substance of that meeting.
4., In answer to a question from Mr. Baron I said tﬁat
in my opinion the language used in the Meméfandum for the ,
Rebo:d of the NSC Meeting of Septémbér 21, 1960 is.sufficiently

broad so it could be interpreted to cover a discussion of

assassination:

HW 509553 DocId:32423566 Page 28 7



MObutu abpeared to be the effective power

in the Congo for the moment but Lumumba

was not yet disposed of and remained a

grave danger as long as he was not dis-

posed of. '
However, I do not remember any_such.discuésion, nbr do I
have any direct recollection of the substance of that

" meeting. | | ‘
5. Aithoqgh Hadyn Williams probably‘repofted to me
on the substance of the NSC Meeting of August 18, 1960, I
do not have dny recollection bf such a report, nor do I have'
aﬁy other reédllection of learning by another source of any
of the subétancé of the discussion at that meeting.
| 6. It is possible that I was present at the meetiné
at,the'Pentagon‘to which Mr. Dillon's affidavit refers. How-
ever, I do not remémber if 1 Qere at this particular meeting;
hor do I remember attending any meeting at the Pentagon where
the'question of‘assassinatingiPatrice Lumumba was faised.
7. In answer to a question from Mr. Baron I said

that in my opinion it would be improper for the Director
of the Central Intelligehce Agency to undertake an-assassi—'

nation operatidn without an express directive from the

President.

Prepared by me on this

?ﬁ\ OC/?‘{\).C;/L , 19;75

day of
/ 7 /‘? .
Frederick D. Baron
Special Assistant to the Chief Counsel
Senate Select Committee to Study

Governmental Operations with Respect
to Intelligence Activities
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rile:

September 23, 1975

Mr, John N, Irwin IX
Patterson, Bellknap & Webb
30 Rockefeller Plaza
New York, Hew York 16020

Dear ¥r. Irwin:

Enclosed please find a copy of the statement I
prepared as a result of our recent discussion.

Please feel free to make any additions or correc-
tions in the statement. Tt would be appreciated if you
would mail a sworn copy of your statement to me as soon

- as possible.

Thanks very much for your help in this matter.

Sincerely,

Frederick D. Baron
Special Assistant to the
Chief Counsel ‘

Enclosure

FDB/do

-526 : Z?&fs77’ élﬂai?y
z{; Fo Scireszs
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STATEMENTS OF JOHd N. IRWIN IL
TO FREDERICK D. BARON ON SEPTEMBER 22, 1975

ThrouUhout 1960 and untll the end of the Tlsenhower Admin-
istration, I served -as Assistant Secretary of Defense. My
'current business éddress is c/q Patterson, Bellknap & Webb: 30

~Rockefeller Plaza, New York, New York. . |

1. 'On September 22; 1975 in my law office I'reviewed the
'folloWing decumeets to- refresh my recbllection‘on discussions that
took place at certainrgovernmental meetings: the Memorandum for
the Record Qf.the Special Group meetings of June 30, 1960 and
August 25, 1960; tﬁe Memorandum for the Record of the National
Security Meetinge of Juinyl;'l960,.AugUSt 18, 1960, end
September 21,.1960; and the Record of Actiog‘of the NSC meetings
of July 15, 1960 and September 7, 1960. As indicated in these
doeuments, I attended all of these meetings except the NSC
‘meeting of August 13, 1960, where I was represented by Mr. Hadyn

Williams. I also reviewed the affidavit of C. Douglas Dillon

‘dated May 21, 1975 which refers, inter alia, to a meeting at the
Pentagon in the summer of 1960. | |
2. Even after attempting to refresh my recolleceion by
reviewing‘the above-mentioned documents, I still have no direct
recollection of the discussions which they meﬁoriaiize. I do
not recall any discussion of any assassination plan connected to

the United States government during the entire course of my
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governmeht»service. L dovnot'fecall whether I evef heard of ﬁhe
CLA'adopting'any assassination plan; nor do I recall wﬁether I
ever heard the President make a statement that could be construed
as an order for the‘éSSassinétion of Patrice Lunumba.

3. It is my qpiﬁion as a former membér of the Special
Group and as a participant in‘the meeting of August 25, 1960 that

the following language from the Memorandum for .the Record is broad

~enough’ to cover a discussion of assassination:

It was finally agreed that planning for the
Congo would not necessarily rule out 'con- _
sideration'" of any particular kind of activity
which might contrlbute to getting rid of
Lumumba
However, I do not rémembef.any such discussion. I do not have
any direct recollection of the substance of that meeting.

4. It is my opinion as a frequent participant in HSC
meetings and as a participant in the meeting of September 21,
1960, that the following language from the Memorandum for the
Record is broad enough to cover a discussion of assassination:

Mobutu appeared to be the effectlve power
in the Congo for the moment but Lumumba was
not yet disposed of and remained a grave
danger as long as he was not disposed of.
However, I do not remember any such discussion. I do not have

any direct recollection of the substance of that meeting.

- 5. Although Hadyn Williams probably reported to me on the

' substance.of:the NSC meeting.of_August 18, 1960, I do not have
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any recollection of~euch a report nor dobI.have any ether recol-
lection ofAlearning by another source of-eny of the substance
of the discussion at that-meering.
| 6. 'it is likely that I was presentxat the meeting at the
Pentagon to which Mr. Dillon's affidavit refers. However, I.do
" not remember'if'f was at‘thisAparticuler4meeting; nor do I re-
member whether I was present at any meetlng at the Pentavon where
the questlon of assassinating Patrlce Lumunba was railsed.
7. It is my general opinion Lhat it would be improper for
the Dlrector of Central Intelligence to undertake an assa531natlon

operaclon w1thout an_express dlrectlve from the President.

Prepared by me on this 22nd day of September, 1975.

Frederick D. Baron,

~Special Assistant to the Chief Counsel
Senate Select Committee to Study
Governmental Operations With Respect to
‘Intelligence Activities
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" State of New York

'vCounty of

SS:.

[ Wl N

 JOHN N. IRWIN II, being'dﬁly swofﬁ;'deposes and says:.

I have read the attached statement consisting of three péges

prepared by.Frederick.D.-Baron, Counsel to the Senate Select
Committee to Study Governmental Operations With Respect to
Intelligence Activities, basedAupon‘my conversation with him

on September 5, 1975, and»I.herebyvadopt:énd ratify this state-

‘ment which is true and‘correct to my direct knowledge.

John N. f}win 1L

Sworn to before me this
day of September, 1975.

Notary Public
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[ IOPRARLUL OF CONVERDAT
WITH ROBERT JOHISCH

SURJICT: ASEASSTIATION OF LINUMPA
PARTICIPARTS: MR, JOHESON AKD MR, WILLIAM G, MILLER
DATE3 JUKE 10, 1975

Mr. Rebert Johneon who is ncow at the Oﬁerceas Developmeﬁt Council
for the summer, te;ephoﬁe 234-86701, vas a member of the Keticnal Sgcuriﬁy
Council staff workiﬁg on Asian sffairs in the laost two years of the
Eisenhéwer Administratién and the first year of the Kennedy Administration.
e said that on occasion, when people were on vacation, he wes assigned
the task of iaklnn notes st KSC meetings. TIn July or August of 1960,

Mr. Jolnson hed the task of note taking. After a review of world events,
by Director of CIA Dulles, which included a deécription of Mr. Lumhmba's
activities in Africa, Eisenhower turﬂed to Pques auv11g the rcctin
the full hearing of all those in axtendance, and said scmething to the effect
that Lumumba ghould be eliminated. According to Mr. Johneson, there was

- & stunned Silenee for about 15 seconds and the mee{iﬁg continued. He
gaid he wrote the notes snd that it tﬁey still e#ist, they are probabdly
in the Eisenhower Presidential papers. He sa;d that notes generally in
presidential papers, officlsl documents of the IKSC, remain with the NSC.
He caid that thé impression at.tﬁe time was one of gréat shock. He eaid
he had heard of nothing like that gince, He sald 4t was uncharacheristic
of Eicenhower to spesk of anything of substance during KSC meetings,
reserving Judgment to private meeﬁings. He does not remember exsctly
who was at fhe meeting beyond Herter and Tulles, and possibly James lay,

Gordcen Grey end Robert &lory.

N
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I asked if ﬁe would be willing to say this under sworn testimeny.
He said that having gone this far he yould, but he cauticned that 15
yeafs‘had passed and he could not voucﬁ fof the”eﬁaét vording, althcugh
his memdry of the impact of the meeting 1s firm.

Mr. Johnson called one hour after the meeting saying that upon
reflection, hé would prefgr net to testif&(if at all possible unless it
was absclutely eséential.‘ He fears retributipn, saying that such
testimonies in the past have blackballed people wiho were interested in
vorking fof the go?ernment. Aéﬁin, he cited people who hsd testified
for the right cause such as the Dodd case. He.said he would testifly
it it'were'deemed to be absolutely neceseary but he 4dd dant to raise

this question.

HW 5p955 ‘DUEId: 324938550
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MEMORANDUM
. FPW RS T TR D

To: The Files ) }

A13 /77
From: Frederick D. Baron . Q%Ci
Date: September 5, 1975
Re: Interview with Robert Johnson regarding the Lumumba Case.

I interviewed Robert Johnson by phone this afternoon
to supplement the earlier interview (June 10, 1975) and
examination (June 18, 1975) that the Committee conducted
with him. At the beginning of the conversation I explained
there were a number of gquestions raised by his interview
and examination that needed to be answered on the record.
Because it was inconvenient for him to make a trip to Washington
in the near future and because of the limited amount of addi-
tional information he was able to provide, we agreed that I
would memorialize the important points of our interview in the
form of an affidavit to which Mr. Johnson would swear.

‘The following points are related as faithfully as
possible in the manner in which Mr. Johnson made them:

1. I never heard of a CIA plot assassinate Lumumba
with lethal biological substances.

2. To the best of my recollection, President Eisen-
hower turned toward Allen Dulles when he made
the statement relating to Lumumba about which T
have testified.

3. After the meeting at which I heard the statement
by President Eisenhower which I described in my
testimony on June 18, 1975, I must have consulted
James Lay (Executive Secretary of the NSC) for
advice on how to treat the President's statement
in my memorandum of the meeting. Mr. Lay was
meticulous about including in the record some form
of reference to every major subject that was dis-
cussed at NSC meetings. So we probably included
the President's statement in some form, but in
what form I do not know. In general, these memo-
randa would be as complete as we could make them.
Nevertheless, on something as sensitive as this,
we may have decided to handle it with euphemism.

4., The NSC meeting of September 21, 1961 is probably
not the meeting at which I heard the President's

B 50%535 Docld:32423566 Page 37 f



HY

50955

Memo for the Files
Page Two

DocId: 32423566

September 5, 1975

statement in reference to Lumumba. Based on Mr.
Baron's representation that I am not listed (either
by name or position) among the participants in the
memorandum of record, I am convinced that I heard
the President's statement at a different meeting.

After hearing Mr. Baron read portions of the minutes
of the NSC meeting of September 21, 1961 to me, I

do have a recollection of some of the subject matter
that was discussed at that meeting. This would not
be unusual, however, because as a member of the MNSC
Planning Board I received a debriefing on the sub-
ject matter of each NSC meeting. I do not, however,
have a recollection of the statement by Mr. Dulles
as related in the minutes of the meeting: "Lumumba
was not vet disposed of and remalnod a grave danger
as long as he was not disposed of.
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. INVENTQQ,E 5e ‘
STATEMENTS BY JAMES LAY ON E

TO FREDERICK D. BARON ON SEPTEMBER 8, 197° 1L CRNY

I was the Executive Secretary of the Natidnal Security Council
throughout 1960. My .summer address 1s Route 2, BoX_Z?S—A,‘Stanley,
Virginia 22851. |

1. I am unable, after all these years as Executive Secretary-
of the NSC and subsequently of the United States Intelligence Board,
tb'recollect the substance_of discussions relating to the Congo in
NSC méetings dﬁringvl960. My principal function at NSC ﬁeetings
was aé the official recorder of the minuﬁes bf'these meétingé, and
not as a policymaker. I cannot at this-ﬁime recall the substance
of any specific discussions or. decisions felating to Pétriée Lumﬁmba
iin NSC meetings'dqring this period.

2. I cannot recéll Whethef_there was any diSCQSSion of assas-
sinating Lumumba at any NSC meetings.

- 3. I do not récéll whether President Eisenhower ever made a
remark at an NSC meeting that could have Been'cdnstrued as an order
to assassinate Lumumba. |

4. I dd ﬁot recollect whether any reference was made at any
NSC meeting to an assassinaﬁionlplan‘or attempt in which the United
.States:was engaged.

5. 1In 1960 Robert Johnson was a member of the NSC Staff as
the notekeeper at NSC meetings in the absence-of Deputy Executive
Secretary Marian Boggs, who normally took the notes and prepared a

first draft of the official NSC minutes subject to my review and |

I



fevisioﬁ for circulation to the NSC members for approval.

| 6. If eXtreﬁely.seﬁSitivé matters were discussed at an NSC
'meeting; it was sometimes thé practicetﬁhat the official NSC
minutes would‘record only the’general subject discussed without
identifying the specially sensitive éubject or the discussion.
In highly.seﬁsitive casés, no referenée to the subjeét would be
made in thé NSC minutes 

| According to my recollection at this timé, théte‘was-no

fixed procedure fér'reéording the discussions of‘these'sensitive
métteré which were usually,discussed in a very limited attendance.
Some of these discussions were of a general'nature whi¢h did not
need to be recorded. Others were of such %mportéﬁce that a full
record-was dtaﬁted by-me and my deputy, és he attended, énd.circu—
lated byvhighly classified memorandum to each of the NSC members
for approvél; In some cases, only a record of the conclusions and
decisions, if any,_wefe simiiarly drafted and approved. As appfoved
by the NSC_members and finally the President, the record of these
extremely sensitive matters were circulated on a very strictly con-

trolled distribution.

Prépared by me on this 8th day of Septembef, 1975 .

;::?;i;ézhﬂﬁ;ﬁ1.2:>';Egzﬂarvvv"

Frederick D. Baron :

Special Assistant to the Chief Counsel’
Senate Select Committee to Study
Governmental Operations With Respect

to Intelligence Activities

0o

HW 50955v-nqn1a:32423556-_Bagg~4u,,



"State of Virginia

: 5S¢
- County ovafééaa/
A7 A

LA N 4

JAMES LAY, being duly sworn, deposes and says: I
have‘read_tﬁe.éttached statement_conéisting of two pages pre-
pared by Frederick D. Baron, Couﬁsel to the Senate Selégt
Committee to Study Governmental Operations With Respect to
Intelligence:Activities, based upon myvcohversation‘with him
on September 8, 1975, and I hereby adopt and ratify this state-

ment which is true and correct to my direct knowledge.

. Sworn to before me this 4 74
day of September, 1975.

Q%zﬂuj , 87/E£§7
14 Notary Public

Mﬁcomss;o,w E&”IRE&APGUﬁb&.QﬂPF

i
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SEL COM
File:

Septewber 23, 1875

Mr. James Lay
Route 2, Box 273-A
qtanley, Virginia 22851

Bear Mr. Lay:

Enclosed please find a copy of the statement I
prepared as a result of our recent discussion.

“

Please feel free to make any additions or correc-
" tions in the statement. It would be appreclated if you
would mail a sworn copy of your atata@ent to me as soon

as possible. 7
‘Thanks very much for your help in this matter.

Sincerely,

Frederick D. Baron
Special Assistant to the
Chief Counsel :

Enclosure

bee: Rhett Dawson
Fritz Schwarz

FDR/do
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STATEMENTS BY JAMES LAY

'TO FREDERICK D. BARON ON SEPTEMBER 8, 1975

I was the Executive Sécretarylofrthe National Security Council
thrdﬁghout:l960. My summer address.is‘Route:Z, Box 273-A, Stanley,v
Virginia 22851. | | |

1. I am unable; after allAthese-years as Executive Secretary
of the NSC and subséquently of the,United States Intelligence Board;
to fecollect the éubsﬁance'of discussions rélating to the Congo'iﬁ
NSC meetings during 1960. My principal funcﬁion at NSC meetings
was as the official recorder of the minutes of these meetings, and
not as' a policymakér.( I cannot at this tiée recall the substancé
of any specific discussions or decisions relating to Patrice Lumumba .
in NSC méetings during thisvperiod.

'2.: I cannot recall whether there was - any discussion of assas-
sinating Lumumba at any NSC meetings. |

>'3; I do noﬁ‘recall whéther President Eisenhower ever made a
re&ark at an NSC meeting that couid'have,béen construed as an order
to assassinate Lumumba.

4. I do not~:ecollect whether any reference was made at ahy
NSC meeting to an aSsassination plan or attempt in which the Uﬁited
States was engaged. |

" 5. In 1960 Robert Johnson was a member of the NSC Staff as
the notekeeper at NSC meetings in the'absénce of Deputy Executive
Sécretary Marian Boggs, who normally took the notes.and prepared a

first draft of the official NSC minutes subject to my review and
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Vrévision for circulation to the NSC membe:s for approval.
6.T‘If'exfremély sensitive ﬁattérs'weteldiscussed.at an NSC.
mee;ing,:it,wasAstetimes the practice that the official NSC
minutes would record only the general‘sﬁbject diScﬁssed without
idenﬁifying;the specially sensitive subject or the discﬁssion.
In highly.sensitive cases, no refefénée to the subject‘WOuld be -
'made ih’the_NSCiminﬁtes.

Accordiﬁg to‘my‘récollection.at this time, there was no
fixed pfocedufe for recording the discussions of'tﬁeée sensitive
matters:which were usually discuésed in ‘a very limited attendance.
Some of these discussions were of a.general nature which did notv
‘need to be reéorded. 'OtHers were of such importance that a full
record was draftgd.by me and myvdeputy, as he attended, and circu-
lated by‘highly classified membrandum‘to eachJOE the:NSC members
for approvél. In some.cases, only a récord of the conClusiQﬁs and
decisions, if any, were similariy drafted and approved. As aﬁproved
by'the NSC members and finally the President, the record of these
extremely sensitive matters were_circulated,on a very striétly con-

trolled distribution.

Prepared by me on this 8th day of September, 1975.

Frederick D. Baron

Special Assistant to the Chief Counsel
Senate Select Committee to Study
Governmental Operations With Respect
to Intelligence Activities
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State of Virginia’ﬁ '
' 5SS

N’ Mo Mo

Cqﬁnty“bf

JAMES LAY, being duly sworn, deposes and says: I
have read the attached statement consisting of twb.pages pre-
‘pared by Frederick Df Baron,:Counsel to the Senate Sélecﬁ
Cbmmiﬁﬁee to Study Governmental Operations Witthespéct to
-Infélligence Aétivities, based upon my conversation With him
‘on September 8, 1975, and I‘hereby adopt and ratify this state-

ment which is true and correct to my direct knowledge.

James Lay -

Sworn to before me this
. day of September, 1975.

Notary Public
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STATEMENT BY "ROBERT MARAWA" em
TO FREDERICK BARON ON NOVEMBER 14, 1975 }3 | /./}7

‘ . ——
|

I am a currenCHemployee of'the Centrel Inteliigence
’Agency My current address is c/o Review Staff Central In-
’telllgence Agency, Langley, Vlrglnla

1. 'In~l960 I was employed by the CIA and one of my
respons1b111t1es in the course of my employment was to serve as
the case officer at Headquarters for an agent who operated under
the cryptonym ”WIROGUE mor read‘most of the cable-trafflc re-
latlng to WIROGUE until the p01nt of the termlnatlon of his re-
tlatlonshlp with the Agency. N | | |
| é.: TOjthe best of my knowledge; I‘participeted in all
training thatkWIROGUE received in prepération for nis assignment'
to the Congo in 1960

3. WIROGUE was not tralned in medical immunization in
‘my presence. I am not aware that he was provided with any such
training.

| 4. I have no knowledge of any CIA plot to assassinate
~ Patrice Lumumba . i have no knowledge that WIROGUE was ever
connected to a plot to aseaseinate Lumumba, nor have I heard
any hint or'suggestion of such a connection;A

5. I hereby affirm that "Robert Marana" is an alias which

is registered et theVCIA elongdwith-my true:identity. Mydtrue

signature'is'affixed to this affidavit. The Senate Select
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Committée will receive a copy of this affidavit from which
my true signature will be deleted. This statement will remain
on file at'the:CIA and will be availablé for'verificatiqn'purposes

for not less than five years.

o R oy 4
: . Frederick D. Baron, Special Assistant
to the Chief Counsel, Senate Select
- Committee to Study Governmental
Operations With Respect to Intelligence
Activities ' _ S
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INVENTORIED:

MEMORANDUM FOR THE FILES ;ﬁ;v oN 3%5//77

From: Gregory Trevertmnzﬂ:;zéy August®294--1975. .£i~mmm__

~ Subject: Kennedy Library Tape Recording of March 13, 1963
National Security Council Meeting

On this date, I listened to a portion of the tape
of the March 13, 1963 meeting of the National Security
Council (President present). I listened to it several
times in order to check it against the Library trans-
cript of that meeting.

The relevant portion of the statement by John McCone
reads as follows:

"With respect to Cuba, the thinking in the Agency is...
we have to first get rid of the Soviets'...troops, and
as stated ((several words garbled)) and use every resource we
have available--political, diplomatic, otherwise-~to accom-
plish that. Once that is done, then we believe that the
monolithic structure of the Castro regime can be broken up.
Maybe we'll have to catalyze it a little bit. But we think
that there are enough indicators of distress within the
military and within his political organization so that
once the Soviets are out some...military coup can be..
will be brought about which will remove the Castro
government, and with a strong possibility of replacing
that government with a government more favorable to our
interests in the Western Hemisphere. Now, this is...
“there's a lot of ifs connected with that, but it seems
‘to use, after having thought about this a good deal, that
some such action as that is a more probably course of
action that would be successful than to try to out..to
envisage an uprising on the part of the population in the
absence of the military...With the military and security
forces on behalf of Castro, they can very easily frustrate
and defeat any civilian uprising. I think, as time goes
on, that our principal problem is going to be dealing
with the future of Cuba and the future of Latin America.
I think the problems of the Bay of Pigs and the October
incident and the missiles will disappear, and more and
more attention is going to be brought on the part of the
people on the Hill...is going to be...is how we're going
to dispose of this problem."

Then the President speaks.
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[}
§ 1 EXECUTIVE SESSION
ug; .
% 3 Tuesday, September 2, 1975
& 4 - T -
5 United States Senate,
6 Select Committee to Study Governmental
o : Operations with Respect to
8 Intelligence Activities,
9 _ ' Washington, D.C.
iO The Committee met, pursuant to notice, at 3:00 oc'clock
11 p.m., in Room 608, Capitol Hill Hotel, Senator Gary W. Hart
residing.
2 12 P g
5 13 Present: Senator Hart of Colorado (presiding).
a]
E 14 Also present: Frederick Baron and Rhett Dawson,
15 Professional Staff Members.
16 -
17 " Mr. Baron. Would you state your name and addfess for the
18 record, please?
19 Mr. Dillon. My name is C. Douglas Dillon. And my address
e .
i 20 is Far Hills, New Jersey.
o]
g 2] Mr. Baron. Mr. Dillon, we have a few formalities that we
g 29 must go through with every witness.
é 03 I want to know first of all if you are aware that you have
§ o4 the right to counsel here today?
g .
S o5 Mr. Dillon. Yes, I am aware.
<t
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. TESTIMONY OF C. DOUGLAS DILLON - 2

TOP SECRET

Mr. Baron. And are you aware that you may cease answering
questions at any point to seek advice of counsel?

Mr. Dillon. I am glad you have so nbtified me;

Mr. Baron. And are you vuluntariiy appearing here today
without counsel?

Mr. Dillon. Yes, I am.

Mr. Baron. Are you also aware that you have all of your
constitutional rights intact here before the Committee,
including your Fifth Amentment rights?

Mr. Dillon. I am glad to know that.

Mr. Baron. Mr. Dillon, could you please give the

" Committee a general idea of your position in the Government

from, say, late 1959 until March of 196172

Mr. Dilion. In late 1959 I was Under Secretary of State,

‘which was the number two position in the State Department.

and I continued in that position until 1961.

My duties as such were two-fold. One was the position as
the First Deputy to the Secretary of State, and Acting
Secretary in his absence from time to time, in which capacity
I h;d to be fully aware at all times'of moreorless everything
that was in the ken of the State Department, so I could fill
in for the Secretary of State as necessary. And in those
days the Secretary was absent a good deal of the time, because
there were travels abroad,'and various reasons. I think I
mentioned in my affidavit that I think I served as Acting

Secretary at least a third of the time during that period.

TOP SECRET
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~run through the Defense Department, and I was the senior State
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My other duty, which was a more particular duty, was to be
in charge of £he econonmic side of our foreign policy, which
included economic areas of_the State'Department, and also
included oversight and general direction‘of the ICA, which
was the name at that time of the Foréign Aid Agency. And I
had the respons$ibility for Congressional relations of the
Foreign Aid Program, énd for getting the legislétion passed
each yéaf, for not the detailed operation, there was a director
of the ICA but I had the general oversight of it. And also a

military program, which was not under the ICA, but which was

Department official involved in that area.

So I had those two different'functions. And for that
reason the setup in this area of working with the CIA and on
intelligence matters was somewhat different than it had been
prior to that. Prior to my advent as Under Secretary theée
Under Secretary had always ahndled that. Mr. Herter, who was
my immediate predecessor,.handled it, and Mr. Hoover before.
When I became Under Secretary I became so under a new law that
had been passed in 1953, at which time I was promoted to
Deputy Under Secretary to the newbposiﬁion, which was called
Under Secretary of State for Economic Affairs, which was the
number three job in the Department. That legislation provided
that this third Under Secretary could either be an Under

Secretary for Economic Affairs, as I was, or an Under Secretary

TOP SECRET
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for Bolitical Affairs, the implication being that he would be
the Undér Secretary for Political Affairs if the Under
Secretary, the nﬁmber two fellow, handled the eocnomic area,
which Mr. Herter did, not when I was first appointed as Under
Secretary for Economic Affairs, but then when_I'became Under
Secretary T todk with me the economic responsibilities.

So The number three fellow wés named Under Secretary for
Political Affairs. It was Mr. Murphy first, and then Mr.
Merchént. And they handled in each case all the details of
the Special Group.

Mr. Barron. And the liaison with the CIA?

Mr. Dillon. And the liaison with the CIA. That was not
haﬁdléd at the Assistant Secretary level, a great deal of it
was done at the Assistant Secretary level, but when it got
above that, it went to the Under Secretary of Political
Affairs. On the other hand, when things were really important]

I was notified, because I had to know about them if an

that was not my particular problem.

Mr. Barron. So you would be keptvnotified of major
developments in the Special Group by Mr. Murphy or Mr.
Merchant?

Mr. Dillon. Yes, major developments.

And I do remember over that year of sitting in occasionally

on meetings that I presume were on that. But they all dealt

TOP SECRETY
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with economic assistance to the various political groups in

different countries when they needed help.
~Mr. Barron. Did you attend National Security meetings
regularly?

Mr. Dillon. I attended National Security meetings quite
regularly whenever I was in town, eith in -~

(Off the record discussion)

Senator Hart. Mr. Dillon, do you swear that the testimony
you are giving is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but
the truth, so help you God?

Mr. Dillon. I do.

Senator Hart. Justifor the record, you also understand
that all of the testimony yau have givén will be covered by
the ocath?

Mr. Dillon. That is correct.

Senator Hart. I am suré the Staff has advised you of your
constitutional rights?

Mr. Dillon. They have.

Myr. Barron. Would yvou read back the witness' last answer?

{:The witness' last answer was read.)

er. Dillon. Either in the capacity as Acting Secretary of
State if the Secretary was out of town, or as one of the
Assistants when he was in town because 0of the fact thatll had
overall supervision of the Foreign Aid, both military and

economic programs, at that time, and therefore, it was

TOP SECRET
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important that I be fully aware of everything that went on at

National Security meetings. And they took place as you know,

morning.

Mr; Baron. And+Wwhere . did. theytake+place?:: " sio-v

Mr.rDi110n. In the Capitol Roém at the White House.

Mr. Baron. Were you in a position as Under Secrétary of
State to be,awaré of every major CIA operation against a
foreign leader or a foreign government?

| Mr. Dillon. I think if there were any such things I would
assume that I would have been aware of then.

Mr. Baron. Would you have also have been aware of any
communications or ordefs running from the President to thé
Director of Central Intelligence?

Mr. Dillon. Only if they had been . given.in my presence
and. I had. heard of them. I wouldn't necessarily be aware of
them otherwise. If the President had wanted thé State
Department to be aware of it, -- and they usually did, there
was pretty good coordination there, Gofdon Gray was hié Special
Assistant anleould;keepréVefybody ﬁotified. But that woal-iv
wouldn't necessarily mean .that we knew of every particular
thing.

Mr. Baron. In what manner were you made aware of major

CIA covert activities?

Mr. Dillon. I think if they were major they were all

TOP SECRET
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discussed at one time or another in the National Security

the major activ}ty that was just getting underway at that time
was very much aware of the development of the capability to
move against Cuba.

Mr. Baron. And what was the nature of your awareness of
that development?

Mr. Dillon. We discussed it quite frequently. And it was
the Setting up of camps in Central America that trained Cﬁban
exiles, and the development of plans for their use. They were
rather:general in nature, but 6f which I was aware of in some
detail; But at that time we all knew that those plans would
not be;feady and the capability wouldn't be ready until
someti&e next year. So if a decision was to be made to use =l
them, it would have come in the following Administration.

Mr. Baron. Were you aware of the development of any CIA
plans or efforts to assassinate Fidel Castro?

Mr. billon. No, not at all.

Mr. Baron. Did you hear any discussion of that subject?

Mr. Dillon. NoneswhatsoeVer.... = ..owe o0

’%iMr;jBaronaiSofalthoughgyougweféaawate:of:CIAtcéverty
activities against;thevCuban reédime, iyourwere: completely
unaware of ‘any  assassindtion.effort against Castro?: .
z;ﬁkMpg;Dillon;,mThezmajor%activitygwasrthenbuilding“upioﬁA

thig: capacity .among.the :Cuban-exilés, -orisupposed capacity,

SECRET
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to iﬁYad§5CHhé and cause a change in regime.

Mr. Baron. Turning back to your position in the
Go?ernment, isn't it true that shortly before the change of
Administrations you resigned from the State Department in
contemplation of resuming Government service in the Kennedy
Administration as Secretary of the Treasury?

Mr. Dillon. Yes.

I might as well explain that in some detail, because it
was an unusual situation.

That fall, I think.it was in October, just prior to the
election in early October, due to some mishap in London, the
Bank of England failed to support the price of gold at a
given.moment}-and it shot up from the suppbrt price of $35 an
acunce to maybe $49 or $50. And there was great perturbation
in the financial markets over this, the first time that it
had happened since the thirties when the price had been set.
And there began to be an outflow of gold from the US at the u-
rate of over a $100 million a week, which seemed very big in
those days. And it was very disturbing.

That continued through the election. And if anything, it
intendsified after the eiection. |

During the election, of course, as a member of the
Republic Administration while the State Department was not.
involvedvin the election campaign, it was specifically exempt

from having anything to do with it -- I was obviously a

TOP SECRET
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supporter of Vice President Nixon, who was seeking election at

that time. Nevertheless, about two or three weeks after the

election, about three weeks after the election, I received a
telephone call one day in my office from Pierre Salinger, whom

I did not know. And he told me on the telephon that Senator

Kennedy -- whom I knew slightly, because he was on the Foreign
Relations Committee -- would'like to come and see me that
night.

And I said, that was very foolish. I am at his disposal,
I will go see him,.

He said, that is not what the Senatdr said. He wants to
come Lo see you.

And Irsaid, very good. I will be home all night.

So Senator Kennedy did show up at 2 o'clock. And he told
me that he was very concerned about this loss of gold and the
lack of confidence iﬂ the financial stability ¢f the US and
the world. And he wanted to rectify this. And nobody trusted
him because the campaign had been made on the basis that he
was going to‘disrupt ever?thing, and didn't have anything
about finances.

And so Wwhatihe. wanted was to appoint someone whom he
thOught would carry weight around the world, and yet who was
sympathetic to his idea of keeping the economy moving. And
he had read some speéches I had made'at one time or another

in my economic capacity with the State Department which

P SECRET
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pretty'ﬁuch paralleled his thinking. And I had been quite
contrary to Vice President Nixon's campaign on that issue
where he talked about growthmanship and the path to push our
growh. And I mentioned, I believe, in the Rockefeller Report
that at that time that we had to grow at.five percent a year
if we wanted to produce and not have unemployment, and so
forth.

And I had seén Kennedy's economic speech which he made in
Philadelphia at the end of October, and I thought it»was just
great, there was nothing I could find wrong with it. Of
course, nobody had read it and nobody paid any attention to
it. And I don't think he had ever given it, but it had béen
released, he had been there and madesa speech and said some of

it. And it was very carefully prepared, and was quité dull

an dry as a result. It was written largely or suggested

largely, I found out later, by Professor Samuels, who was the
Dean of all economists at that time. And I couldn't find
anything wrong with that.

And he said he could not make any offer of this, and wasn'
doing that, but he wanted me to think about this because he
thoughtvit was‘absolutely essential to safegard the currency
and all that.

Well, this éame as a great surprise to me. I had made
all my plans to go béck home.v

To make a long story short, I talked to various people,
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including Bob Anderson, who was then Secretary of the Treasury.
And he said I should do this. And gquite a few pebple did.
And also the President-elect was géod enough to say if I did
do this he would work with me, and I would be his top economic
advisor, and if there were any differences in economic advice
that he would side with the Treasury unless the thing wa;
serious enought to lead to a parting of the ways. And one
commitment that ﬁe wanted from me was that if there was that
it would not be a silent parting of the ways. Apd that was a
very easy thing for me to agree to.

And on or after I had come back from a final meeting of
the OACD in Paris at which the Convention was signed, at
which I had been a leading negotiator,vearly}in December i
had a call from him when I got back that morning saying that
he wanted me to come over to his place, that he wahted to do
this if I would agree.

So I went to President Eisenhower and told him of my
meeting abroad and told him I was going to see Senator
Kennedy -- which he didn't like very much. And I saw him.

And we talked about certain financial things that might be a
problem, which I told him about, which they turned out not to
be.

And he then right aWay, that morning, much to my surprise,
went out on the fronﬁ stoop of the house in Georgetown and took

me out there with Robert Kennedy, whom I had never met before
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MEMORATDUM

SUBJECT: Discussion at the L460th Meeting
i of the National Security Council,
Wednesday, September 21, 1960

Present et the L60th NSC Meeting were the: President of the

United States, presiding; the Acting Secrclary of State (Dillon);

the Secretary of Defense; and the Acting Director, Office of

Civil and Defense Mobilization (Patterson). Also present at the

Meeting and participating in the Council Actions below were the

Secretary of the Treasury; the Director, Bureau of the Budget;

the Attorney General (Items 1 and 2); the Secretary of Commerce
éltems 1, 2 and 3); the Acting Secretary of the Interior (E@nnett)
Ttems 1 and 2); Mr. Tom Killefer for the President, Expcert-Import

Bank of Washington (Items 1 end 2); and the Chairman, Council on

Foreign Economic Policy (TItem 3). Als& attending the Meeting were

the Chairman, Joint Chiefs of Staff; the Director of Central Intel-

ligence; the Special Assistants to the President for National Secu-

rity Affairs and for Security Operations Coordination; Assistant

Secretary of Defense John N. Irwin,II; Mr. Robert Packard for the

Department of State; Mr. Knight McMahan, Central Intelligence Agency;

B +he Mnlte House otaff Secret&ry) the Ausistant White House otaff :::1

Secretary, NSC

There follows a summary of the discussion at the Meeting
and the main points taken.

1. VESTERN EURCPEAN DEFENDENCE ON MIDDLE TFAST PETROLEUM
{NSC Action No. 2080; Memos for NSC from Executive Secretary, -
same subject, dated March 26, 1959, and June 28, 1960; NSC
6011; Memos for NSC, same subgect dated August 9 and 23,and
September 19, 1960)

Mr. Gray introduced the subject to the Council. (A copy of
Mr. Gray's Briefing Note is filed in the Minutes of the leeting
and another copy is attached to this Memorandum).

At the conclusion of Mr. Gray's presentation, the President
said he had received the most glowing reporlts on the prospecto

for petroleum preduction in Libya. He had been told that the
Libyan reserves exceeded even the Sabara reserves. He asked
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untile that day, and announced both of us at once. So I was
announced as of the middle of December as the future Secretary
of the Treasury.

That rather limited my'capacity in the State Department.
But I did continue for two or three more weeks to wind things
up and make a proper turnover.

And then I resigned from the State Department in January
and continued thét preparation for the new Jjob.

And that is how that happened.

Mr. Baron. So you left the State Department -- you said
earlier to me on January 2nd or 3rd?-- |
o MEy-DiXlon..»Or’i4thror 5th’yrsometime:in the first: fouri:.
or:fivieror six days.: ‘And aftér-that one thing I ought té
make clear is that Preéident Kennedy had a great interest in
the authority of the Presidency in foreign policy. And I
think he was under the impression that Sécretary Dulles had
probably dominated President Eisenhower in some asptects,
which I don't think was an accuare description of what
happened at all, but iﬁ was a generally held one at that time.
So he wanted to take over this very much himself. And so he
put in some new people there.

And we came to he very close, and worked very well
together. And I had the greatest admiration for him.

He never at that‘time or later ever asked me anything about

my experience at the State Department or any foreign policy
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thing, I was not used in any transitional sense at all.

Mr. Dawson. To include the Bay of Pigs plan?

Mr. Dillon. Totally. That was rather a‘surprise to me.
And I think I might have ‘been of.somefhelp to him if he had,
because Ishad;beennawarezoﬁ?it}righthup through January, and ii
particular I was aware, at least that is my understanding at
thé time, that there was always an ultimate background in the
use of our naval-air if those people got in trouble. And I
don't think that was ever made clear to President Kennedy.
And that was too bad. And when it was made clear to him he

reacted violently against it, and I rather doubt if he would

" have allowed the thing to be unleashed if he had known this

much about it.

Senator Hart. Aside from the regular 54-12 meetings, did

you have contact with the CIA in any other<capacity on a

routine basié?

Mr. Dillon. No, not on a routine basis.

Senator Harti. Occasional basis?

Mr. Dillon. Yes. Because, for instance, I went back --
when we were flying earlier, when we‘were flying US missions,
for instance, they had to be cleared by tﬁe State Department,
or the Defense Departmeht, or by the CIA, and finally by
the President. And that was all handled through Goodpastor,
he was then a colonei, at the White House. So I did in that

capacity a couple of times, as Acting Secretary, have to clear
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those things and talk with Allen Dulles about them. And so

from time to time there were those moreorless informal
contacts. But they were not routine and regular. They were
generally on this basis of when I was;Acting Secretary and
théy needed something from the State Department.

Senator Hart. I don't want to interrupt the flow of
questiohs by the Staff on this sequence, but we maj want to
get some questioﬁs on your experience during the US situation
on the Doctriné of "Plausible Deniability".

Mr. Dillon. That is something I feel I have a good deal
to say about.

Senator Hart. You can proceed here sequentially.

Mr. Baron. Just one other question before we turn to your

affidavit. And that is, you were indicating that when you

joined the Kennedy Administration you were not consulted for

advice on your State Department experience.

Mr. Dillon. Until the time of the missile crisis, when
they got together a new, what we called an EXCOM, Executive
Committee;. At that time, whether it was the result of the Bay
of Pigs thing, or just the fact that-the President knew me
better, and we had been working together for a longer time, he
called me in right at the beginning, and I had a very active
role in this period.

Mr. Baron. But at the beginning of the Kennedy Admini-

stration I take it you were not asked for advice on Congo
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affairs nor kept abreast of developments in the Congo?

' Mr.‘Dillon. No, nor any other foreign policy, except as
it~fell under the monetary area, Qith one exception. And this
was economic entirely. That is, thevPresident, because of
my past experience in the handling of this matter, asked me,
moreorless as a favor, because he didn't believe the Treasury
should really handle this, but he asked me if I would head the
US effort or set up the Alliance for Progress. And there was
going to be a meeting down in Uruguay, Puntal del Este. And
so I did do thta. And that was the only foreign policy job
I did. And that was economic in nature.

Mr. Baron. Let me show you now a copy of your affidavit
to the Rockefeller Commission which concerns among other
things a meeting that was held in the Pentagon where the
Congo was discussed. First, let me ask you if that is a true
copy of your affidavit?

Mr. Dillon. It so appears.

Mr. Baron. Do you recall this meeting where, as you have
affirmed: "On one occasion in late July or early August of
1960, shortly after Patrice Lumumba's visit to Washington,

I attended a meeting in the Pentagon at which the overall
Congo problem was discussed; During the discussion, which
covered a great variety of matters, my recollection is that

a question regarding the possibility of assassination attempt
against Lumumba was briefly raised. The CIA representative

indicated that the Agency did not undertake this sort of -
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operqtion. This ended consideration of this subject. With
this one exception I never heard any discussion of assassina-
tion attempts against anybne."

Do you recall this meeting now?

Mr. Dillon. Yes, I recall just what I said thege. And I
think probably should expand on that a little bit, because
in looking at it -it is not as clear as I would iike it to be.

When I mentioned the assassination attempt it was not
necessarily limited to ~- or it might have been CIA personnel.

It also included encouraging one of the many factions that

‘might not like him there to take action on their own, with

CIA encouragemnent.

Senétor Hart. What kind of encouragement, material
support, financial support?

Mr. Dilldn. That, or moral support, if they did the US
would recognize them if they became the head, and would help
them.

Senator Hart. Was there‘any discussidn that vou can
recall of the passage o— weapons?

Mr. Dillon. ©No, no detail like that. This was very brief
very general, and just turned off by the CIA people at that
time.

Mr. Baron. So this mention of assassination could have
included a CIA sponsored assassination attempt?

Mr. Dillon. It could have, yes.
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be, and asked him if he had any recollection of this particular

17

Mr. Baron. And it was a more general reference --

Mr. Dillon. It was a very general way of getting some-
where. In one of those other papers something»was said.about
getting rid of Lumumba. That was really moreorless the
objective, not necessarily to have him leave the earth, but
just to get him ocut of the Congo and away.

Mr. Baron. Youracleér impression that the suggestion
contemplated assassination as one means of getting rid of
Lumumba?

Mr. Dillon. As a possibility.

Mr. Baron. And let's fill in some of thé context of the
meeting. Do you recall where this meeting took place?

Mr. Dillon..,I think i1t took place in ﬁhe Office'of the
Secretary of befense.

I may say that after you spoke on the telephone the other
day I called Mr. Gates, who was Secretary of Defense at that

time, and who was a friend of mine then, and has continued to

meeting. And he says he did not. But I do think it took
place in his office. And I don't recall whether he was there
or not. It could be that he wasn't even there. But I think
it was in his own office that it took place.

Mr. Baron. When we spoke bhefore you said that you thought
he probably was in attendance. Is that still your feeling?

Mr. Dillon. Well, because it was in his office. I don't
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remember him being there or saying anything. All I remember
is the location, and the fact that the subject came up, and
the fact that there were a number of people there ~-- I don't
remember who they were —-- and the fact that the CIA people,
whoever: they were, were negative to any such action.

Mr. Baron. About how many people were in attendance?

Mr. Dillon. I would.sayAfive or six, because I saw them
sitting around the desk, I would say five or six, or it
could have been seven or eight, no more.

Mr. Baron. Was this the meeting of any official body?

Mr. Dillon. No, I don't think so. It was not a w..oui

- note~taking type of meeting. It was not sitting around the

table with somebody as the Chairman.
Senator Hart. It wés ad hoc, in other words?
Mr; Dillon. It was ad hoc.
Senator Hart. Would yvou be able to characterize the.

nature of the CIA opposition? Was it vehement, violent,

casual?
Mr. Dillon. No. It was just more orless silent, and
"there is nothing we can do." It wasn't moral.

Senator Hart. There was no policy objection?

Mr. Dillon. It wasn't stated in that way. It was just
saying, no, it is not a possible thing.

Mr. Baron. You ﬁentioned on the phone to me that rather

than a-méral objection, as you have just said, it might have
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killed. There was always contingency planning, whether we
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been an objection on the grounds that the CIA did not have the

capability to perform such an operation?

Mr. Dillon. It could have been, it may have been just

use talking about it.

Mr. Dawson. The subject matter of the meeting was probably
something which the Secretary of Defense had a leadingirole
in designing a pélicy for, right?

Mr. Dillon; I don't recall the details of what was
ahppening at that time in the Congo. But I do have a basic
recollectioﬁ that over this period of time it was a pretty
difficult situation, with Uﬁ forces in there, and all sorts
of troubles down in the southeastern part whefe the coppef

mines were, and trying to get people out so they wouldn't get

would have to use any of our forces for another evacuation
or something else. So it was a»very mixed up and sort of a
hot situation at that time.

So certainly various people in the Defense Departmen would
be interested. Mr. Gates, when I spoke to him, said that he
personally had not given primary attention at any time to the
Congo. He said it might ha&e been Jim Douglas, who, as I
mentioned to you there, was listed as attending one of those
meetings. And I don;t recall exactly what his title was at

that time, but he had been, I think, Secretary of the Air

TOP SECRET
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Force, and mayb?ioii%l %E%?EE time.
% 1 Mr. Baron. Was it a regular occurance to convene such
3 :
é 2 meetings at the Pentagon?
% S Mr. Dillon. We had a very close relationship between the
§ 4 State Department and the Pentagon at that time. And it was
5 not unusual, because of the fact tﬁat generally there would
6 be a representative of the Joint Chiefsvpresent, and théy were
7 both over there, and if for any reason_it_seemed reasonable, we
8 would do that. Now, usually I think the man who was responsible
9 would be this number three person in the State Department, he
10 would go to the Pentagon for many of:the meetihgs, the
11 _briefings and things like that which would be in the area of
, 12 the Joint Chiefs, and so forth. He was there a great deal.
5 13| I wasn't there in my capacity.
a
§ 14 Mr. Baron. Do you have any idea why you were in
S 15 .attendance at this particular meeting?
16 Mr. Dillon. It might also have had something to do with
17 the thing that I was talking with them about all the time, a
18 totally different subject, which was military aid. That could
o 19 well have been.
§ 20 Mr. Baron. Do you recall any of the other participants at
0
g 21 the meeting?
§ 22 Mr. Dillon. Not by name.
5 23 Op the telephone'youuasked me about Bissell, whether he
g 24 'mightéhaVe been there. And I answered, in all probability he
£
E oF might have, because I knew him, in .-fact I have anwn him for
TOP SECRET
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many years, all my life. But when I was down here at that timg

I knew he had a high position in the CIA, ahd was in charge
of all this sort of stuff, and he was - at a number of meetings.
there, orreven at the White House. He was an advisérﬂté Mr.
Dulles. So I say that is very likely.

| Mr. Baron. By this sort of stuff would you mean covert
actions?

Mr. Dillen. Covert actions or anything that was important

enough in that general field to involve Mr. Dulles, The CIA,

the President. He was a person there, one of the people that

was talked to about it. There were three people. There were-

really at that time Allen Dulles, General Cabell, and Bissell.
" Mr. Baron. Was it yoﬁr general impression that this was

a high level meeting -- a sufficiently high level meeting so

.that Allen Dulles might have been in attendance?

Mr. Dillon. He could have been.

Mr. Baron. And are there any other people who woula have
been likely candidates to have been in attendance at the
meeting?

Mr. Dillon. I imagine there must have -been some represen-
tative of the military there. But I don't know who it would
have been. But there must have been someone else if the
Secretary of Defense was there. Now, Erwin, since he didn't
allow these things, he might have been there. That isAjust

supposition.
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ﬁ;;.Baron. And I believe you had said to me before that
despite your absence of a clear recolleciton as to which CIA
peoplerwere there, it was clear to you that some top 1e§el
CIA people were there?

Mr. Dillon. Top enough, so that something like this could
be raised and moreorless dispdsed of without évenithinking
of it any‘furthér.

Senator-Hart. Let-me insert a question, if I might. This
is a philosophical question.

First of all, factually, in any of the dealings, formal or|
informal, that you ever had with President Eisenhower or

President Kennedy, did the subject of assassination ever

‘arise?

Mr. Dillon. As far as I know, as I recall, in dealing

'directly with either of them, no.

Senator Hart. I would invite your speculation at this
point as a sub-Cabinet officer undér President Eisenhower,
and as a Cabinet Officer under President Kennedy, I think
the Committee would be interested in your view as to the
attitude of each of them tqward this subject, that is.to say,
the elimination, violent elimination of foreign leaders?

Mr. Dillon. Well, that is a difficult thing to speculate
on in a totally different atmosphere. But I think probably
both of them would have approached it in a very pragmatic way,

most likely, simply weighed the process and consequence
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rather than in a way that was primarily of a moral principle.
That is what would probably have been their attitude in a few
cases. Certainly the idea that this was going to be a policy
of the US, generally both of them weré véry much opposed to
it.

Senator Harf. Off the record just a second.

(OFff the record discussion) g

|

Mr. Baron. To return to the setting at the meeting at the

| .
Pentagon, I wonder if you could fill in the nature of the

discussion that was taking place on thé Congo before this

, . ,
prospect of assassination was raised at the meeting?

Mr. Dillon. I don't recally recall it, except that it

~was bemoaning the general presence_bf Lumumba and the

difficulty of working anything aut with him, or the impossi-

bility of working anything out with him, and the exploration

of other possibilities.

Mr. Baron.' Did you date this meeting by any particular
event which took place?

Mr. Dillon. Yes. I dated it only because it must have
taken place after, and presumably shbrtly after, Lumumba's
visit to Washington, because the impression that was left was
that it was very bad, that this was an individual Whom it was
impossible to deal with. And the feelings of the Government
as a result of this éharpened very considerably at that time.

I don't think it would have possibly have occurred before he

- TOP SECRET
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% 1 came. We hoped to see him and see what we could do to come to
e
g ) better understanding with him.
&
g 3 Mr. Baron. Why did he strike you as being impossible to.
§ 4 deal with in any way? |
5 Mr. Dillon. Well, what I really recall was the impression
6 he made rather than the individual things he éaid. When he was
~ in the State Department meeting, either with me or with the
8 Secretary in my presence, he spoke in a mannter that seemed
S almost messianic in quality. And he would never look you in
10 the eye. He looked up at the sky. And a tremendous flow of
11 vwords came out. He spoke in French, énd he spoke it very
. 19 fluently. And his words didn't ever have any relation to the
§ 13 particular things that we wanﬁed to discu;s. And it was just
g 14 like ships passing in the night. You had a feeling that he
‘ 15 was a person that was gripped by this fervor that I can only
16 characterize as messianic. And he was just not a rational
17 .being.
18 Mr. Béron. When we talked earlier I helieve you
) 19 charaterized his personal power almost as psychotic, is that
% 20 right?
% 01 Mr. Dillon. That is right.
§ 99 Mr. Baron. So that after hé departeda from the US you
g 03 and others at a high level in the State Department were,
% 54 extremely concerned about this man continuing in a position
§ o5 in the Congo?
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Mr. Dillon. That is right.

Mr. Baron. Do you recall who raised the question or the
prqspect of assassination of Lumumba at this meeting?

Mr. Dillon. .I don't. It very likely’couldrhave come from
somewhere, either from the State Department or possibly from
the Defense Department in the international affairs areas,
someone just throwing out this guestion. Now, I said the
State Department. There was probably someone there besides
myself. Because it wasn't usual to justﬁbe_alone talking
about this.

Mr. Baron. Do vou recall whether this was raised as a
guestion or as a suggestion?

Mr. Dillon. No, as a question.

Mr. Baron. And who was the CIA representative that you
mentioned in your affidavit that responded as indicated that
this was not within the capability of the CIA?

Mr. Dillon. That I don't recall. But I'iﬁagine it would
have to have been either Allen Dulles, or possibly Cabell,
but I think most likely Cabell.

Mr. Baron. We have a record of the fact that Lumumba met
with Secretary Herter in Washington on the 27th of June 1960.
Does that accord with your memory as to the probable date of
this conversation? It would be shortly after Lumumba's visit.

Mr. Dillon. Shortly after his visit. And that must have

been it. And the record that you had must have been the
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record of the meeting that I attended that I referred to
earlier. The dates that were given in this affidavit were
supplied to me on the basis that it was shortly after his
visit. So they looked up when his visit was, and that is why
they put this in. All I recall of the place and date is that
when I saw him off at the girport it was very hot. So it must
have been the summer, July or August.

Mr. Baron. Let me £ill you in enva ‘fewother events that
were happening from mid to late July, and ask you if this
refreshes your recollection as to the seﬁse of urgency that
might have existed at a meeting such as the one you attended L
in reference to getting rid of Lumumba. It appears that on
the lzth of July the US had sgnt a garrier, the Wasp, to fhe

Congo, although we had refrained from sending troops to the

Congo. Then on the 20th of July Ambassador Lodge’indicated

that it was the US position that the UN would be urgéd to do
everything possible to keep Soviet troops out of the Congo.
Then on the 22nd of July Lumumba signed a 50-year
contract with CINCO, a large American resources company. But
that contract was disavowed by the finance minister of the
Congo the following day, on the 26th of July -- I am sorry, it
was disavowed on the 26th of July, which wasn't the following
day. And it was in’that setting that Lumumba then came to
Washington. |
While he was in Washington apparently Secretary Herter

pledged aid to the Congo. And Mr, Detweiler, who was the
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Head of the @IMCO Company that had this huge contract in the
Congo, met with people at the State Department to discuss the
situation as to whether the contract was going to be performed
or not in the Congo. | | |

Do vou recall any of that backgroun@? And does that
refresh your recollection about the urgency of the:situation
at that time?

Mr. Dillon. WNo. The only thing I recall is that there
were —-- which I think I mentioned maybe earlier in our informal
conversations -~- that there were talks at the time about the
pdssibility of using Us military force in one way or another
~-- I think the faét that the Wasp was ordered there fits right
in with that sort60f general recollection, that it was

something that we were very worried about. And I don't

I don't think I have ever heard of EINnco.

Mr. Baron. Did you have an independent recollection of
the ordering of the Wasp to the Congo -- or to the shores of
Africa?

Mr. Dillon. Not of that one particular thing. But I do
remember that there was consideration of the use of military
-~ I think there was some talk about airlift capacities and
things of that nature,too, at that time.

Mr. Baron. Again to refresh your recollection, I believe

CIMCO, C=IzM-C-0, stands for the Congo International o0 .un.
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Management Corporation, which was a US corpofation. And they
had signed a resources development cqntract in the Congo.

Mr. Dillon. It must have been a company that was just
formed for that purpose or soemthing, it'soﬁnds like.

Mr. Baron. Do you recall a visit from Ambassador
Timberlake, who was at thét time the US Ambassador to the
Congo, to Washington shortly before your meeting at the
Pentagoﬁ?

Mr. Dillon. ©No. But it think it would have been normal,
with Lumumba, who was then Prime Minister, coming here, and
our concern about the situation, for the Ambassador to come
back prior to Lumumba's visit or simultaneous with it, to.
brief the Department on the latest developments there. That
was sort of standard operating practice. When the head of a
government comes usually the Ambassador comes with him to do
that.

Mr. Baron. Would it fit with your memory that the CIA
Chief of Station and the US Ambassador had come back to
Washington shortly before Lumumba's visit in preparation for
his visit to report upon events in the Congo?

Mr. Dillon. It is not my memory, because I don't
remember that. But what I can say is that that would have
been standard practice, and I would have been surprised if
they hadn't.

Mr. Baron. What kind of reports would you have been

TOP SECRET
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getting at that time ffom the CIA Chief of Station and the US
Ambassadoxr?

Mr. Dillon. Well, we would have been getting whatever
reports the US Ambassador sent, the reports from the Chief of
Station would go to the CIA, and we would not get those except
in the edited form that the CIA would give them to us.

Mr. Baron. Did you receive urgings from thé US Ambassador
from the CIA as a result of their briefings from the Chief of
Station in the Congo to undertake political action in the
Congo toward removing Lumumba from a position of power due to
reports that Lumumba was heavily influenced by the Soviets?

Mr. Dillon. I do know that he was supposedly influenced

. by the Soviets. But my impression of seeing him was that he

certainly wasn't controlled by them or anyone else, he was

so far gone himself that nobody could rely on him as an
individual. I don't recall any pati¢ular urgins from the
Ambassador, althoﬁgh I think they would have been natural,
because this was a very difficult situation, and he was there,
and if he had been not warning against something, that would
have_been very unusual.

Mr. Baron. Aside from the recent visit of Lumumba and
the personal impreséion that he had made upon yburself and
the Secretary of State, there were other reasons, were there
not, to have a sense of urgency about removing him?

Mr. Dillon. There were all sorts of difficulties that I

TOP SECRET
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don't recall. But there were thése prohlems down around the
copper mines, and Katanga, there was a revolution down there
of sorﬁs, And there were many difficulties in the Congo at
that time.

Mr. Barbn. Do you recall anythiné else about the language
that was used in raising the question of assassination at the
meeting?

Mr. Dillon. No, I am sorry, I don't recall really anything
but what is- in the affidavit, but just the subject came up
generally as a question, and it was turned off by the CIA.

Mr. Baron. Would the manner in which the question of
assassinating Lumumba was raised at that meeting have served
as sufficient authorization for the CIA to proceed to dévelop
the capability to assassinate Lumumba éfter that meeting?

Mr. Dillon. Well, I don't think they really needed any
authorization to develop the capabilities 1if they didn't use
them. And certainly it would not have been enough authoriza—
tion by a long shot for them to start doing that. But I think
they could have.decided they wanted to develop the capability
in this area irrespective of this, just by knowing the concern
that everyone had about Lumumba in the area; That they could
have done. They wouldn't have to tell anyone about that.

That is just developing their own internal capability, and
then they would have to come and get perﬁission.

Mr. Baron. Would the same thing hold true for the

TOP SECRET
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development of a generalized assassination capability at the

specific authorization from authority outside the CIA?

Mr. Dillon. Yes, I would think so.

Mr. Baron. But it is clear to you that the discussion at
the meeting at the Pentagon that vou attended would not in
itself have served as an authorization for an actual assassi-
nation effort against Lumumba? |

Mr. Dillon. TNot at all.

Mr. Baron. Did you ever hear the phrase "Executive Action
during your entire tenure in Government?

Mr. Dillon. No. The first time I ever heard it, I was
on the Rockefeller Commission.

Mr. Baron. Were you aware that the CIA undertook a projecit

for carrying off an assassination if required?

Mr. Dillon. No, I didn't.

&r. Baron. And your first knowledge of any such project
was during your service on the Rockefeller Commission?

Mr. Dillon. That is right.

Mr. Baron. Earlier today we discussed Robert Johnson,
who was a member of the NSC Staff in the late fifties and
serving until early 1962. Do you recall whether Robert
Johnson participated in this meetingat the Pentagon?

Mr. Dillon.  No, I don'‘t recall. I wouldn't think SO,

f TOP SECRET
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because I wouldn't think there was necessarily anyone from the
National Security Staff. And as I said also earlier, I don't
personally remember Mr. Johnson myself at all.

Mr. Baron. As T represented to yéu earlier, Mr. Johnson,
in testimony before the Committee, indicated that he was
present at a NSC meeting in his capacity as a notetaker,
at which the President made a remark that clearly indicated
to Mr. Johnson tﬁat he haa ordered the assassination of
Lumumba. And Mr. Johnson said there was a silence -- Mr.
Johnson himself was shocked, but no one at the meeting reacted
explicityly, and the meeting simplv proceeded. He places
this meeting in the summer of 1960, and.said-that it happened
at some point‘before the coup in which Mobutu took power én
Septemb er l4th of 1960. Were you present at such a meeting?

Mr. Dillon. If you mean was I present at a meéting where
I reéall the President ordering the assassination of Lumumba,
I don't remember such a thing. But I think that I was probably
present at most of the Security Council meetings at that time.
It being in August I might have been away for a week possibly
for a vacation, and I might have missed one. But otherwise
I would have beeh there. It could have been in view of this
feeling of everybody that Lumumba was very difficult if not
iﬁpossible person to deal with, and was dangerous to the peace
and safety of the wofld, that the President expressed himself,

we will have to do whatever is necessary to'get rid of him.
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I don't know that I would have taken that as a clearcut order
as Mr. Johnson apparently did. And I think perhaps others
present may have interpreted it other ways. But I am pretty
sure that if the President had said you go and get rid of him,

shoot him or something -- I just can't conceive of him

Vdoing that. But I can conceive of him saying, let's take

action and get this situation rectified, which is moreorless
along the lines of the various memoranda you have shown me.

Mr. Baron. pDid you ever hear the President make such a
remark about Lumumba, let's get rid of him, or let's take
action right away on this?

Mr. Dillon. I don't remember that. But certainly this
was the general feeling of Government at that time, and it
wouldn't have been if the President hadn't agreed with it;

Mr. Baron. So although you have no recollection of being
present at the meeting that Robert Johnson recounts, you
would find his testimony at least plausible?

Mr. Dillon. It is possible. But I would think anything
like this was not a direct .order to have an assassination,
but let's take some.action to get rid of Lumumba, get him
6ut of office.

Mr. Dawson. Would that be adequate, implicity authoriza-
tion?

Mr. Dillon. It would have been up to the CIA as to what

they thought. And they could have well thought that. That
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is an imponderable which runs through all of this, whether it
is Lumumba or Castro. And You won't be able in the Castro
area, or particularly in this areags to run it down, because
the peoplé aren't here ahymore; But ﬁhé‘persoﬁ‘who really made
that decision for the CIA was Allen Dulles.

Mr. Dawson. I guess I was asking for your expert opinion
on the command and controel étructure as to what adequate,
implicit authorization would have been?

Mr. Dillon. I think that Allen Dulles would have been
quité responsive to what he considered implicit authorization,
because he felt very strongly that we should not involved the
President directly in things of this nature. And he was
perfectly willing to take the responsibility personally that

maybe some of his successors wouldn't have been. And so I

-think that this is a perfectly plausible thing, knowing Allen

Dulles.

Mr. Dawson. And you were aware that that was the way the
system worked at that time?

Mr. Dillon. It was the way he workeéd; because he had a
very strong feeling of protecting the President froﬁ getting
too élosely involved with anything that was unpleasant and
of this nature.

Mr. Baron. So from yvour knowledge of Allen Dulles it is
conceivable that he Qould have taken Presidential language

such as, get rid of Lumumba, and translate it into an
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g 1 authorization for an assassination within the CIA?
3 ,
g 5 Mr. Dillon. It is possible. And the same thing with
g 3 Castro, when that came along the following year. That is
g " perfectly possible.
5 Mr. Baron. Mr. Secretary, I would like to show you a
5 series of minutes from the Special Group and ask you if those
o refresh your recollection as to the attitude of the US toward
8 the Congo ih the summer and fall of 19690, The first, which
9 we will call Exhibit 2, is dated 30 June 1960.
10 (The above referred to document
11 was marked Dillon Exhibit No. 2,
for identification.)
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Mr. Baron. And this document refers to the election of
Joseph Ileo to the Presidency of the Senate of the Congo, and
recounts a report by General Cabell that the US assisted Ileo
financially and "may have secured some influence with this
potentially useful individual."

Did you ever see these minutes at the time they were made?

Mr. Dillon. No, I don't think I ever did.

Mr. Baron. Do you recall having a report of this meeting
from Mr. Merchant who woula have been State Department
repfesentative at the meeting?

Mr. Dillon. WNo, T aon't reéall. I don't think I would
have, because this wouldn't have seemed to me to be important
enough to necessarily have been brought tQ my attention.

Mr. Baron. Were you aware that Joseph Ileo was a signi-
ficant figure in Congo politics?

Mr. billon. I don't recall him at all now.

My . Baron. Let me represent to ?ou, to refresh your
recollection, that in September of 1960, after Lumumba was
taken out of power by Kasavubu and Mobutu, he was replaced as
Prime Minister of the Congo by Joseph Ileo.

Mr. Dillén. I didn't realize that.

Mr. Baron. Do you have any refreshed recollection now of
the relationship between the US and Joseph Ileo?

Mr. Dillon. No.

Mr. Baron. Generally speaking, would you have been

TOP SECRET
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notified by Mr. Merchant.or Gordon Gray about what transpired
at a Special Group meeting?

Mr. Dillon. Not by Gordon Gray. That wasn't his job.
But it would be by Mr. Merchant if it‘was>considered to be
something that was of enough importance that it might be
something that I would have to act on or know about in my
capacity as Acting Secrefary of State, whenever that arose.

Mr. Baron. Were you aware that the US was supplying
financial support or other kinds of support to "Moderate"
polititions within the.Congo who would be opponents of Lumumba?y

Mr. Dillon. Not in detail, but certainly the general
fact that we would be doing that, ves.

Mr. Baron. Let me show you now minutes from a Special

3.
(The above referred to document
was marked Exhibit No. 3 for

identification.)
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Mr. Baron. For the record, these minutes refer to a
report by Thomas Parrott, who was the Secretary of the Special
Group on CIA activity in relation to the Congo. Mr. Parrott
outlines three CIA operations in the Congo which make use.of
trade unions in the Congoc and include the prospect that a
vote of no confidence in Lumﬁmba would be arranged.

Following that_repor£ by Mr. Parrott there is a paragraph
which describes the action of the Group as follows: "The
Group agreed that the action contemplated is very much in
order. Mr. Grayv commented, however, that his associate had

- expressed extremely strong feelings on the necessity for very
straightforward action in this.situation, and wondered whether
the plans as outlined were sufficient to accomplishlthis.

Mr. Dulles replied that he had takent he comments'referred
to seriously and had every intention of proceeding as
vigorously as the situation permits or requires, but added
that he must necessarily put himself in a position of inter-
preting instructions of this kind within the bounds of
necessity and capability. It was finally agreed that ...
planning for the Congo would not necessarily rule out
"consideration' of any particular kind of activity which
might contribute to getting rid of Lumumba."

Do you recall receiving a report of that meeting?

Mr. Dillon. No, I don't, that particular meeting. But

you would have to ask Mr. Gray about that. I don't know who
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they referred to as his associate, that is the key point. He
worked for the President.

Mr. Baron. Let me represent to ygu that we have testimony
from Thomas Parrott, who took the minutes for this meeting and

¢

other Special Group meetings, that when he used the phrase

"Mr. Gray's associate or Mr. Gray's friend," he was referring

euphemistically to the President.

Mr. Dillon. That is what I would moreorless have assumed.
But as long as you have that testimony, my assumption is
probébly correct. And it follows the same way, that Mr.
Dulles said he would take any comments referred to seriously.
And then he talks about those as instructions and the same
thing. And it would seem to be that. And that must refer to
the same meeting that your friend Mr. Jochnson testified to,

which I presume took place before this. They are talking

‘about something that happened before this day, where he had

said his associate had expressed strong feelings about the

' matter, and Mr. Dulles said he would take the comments

referred to seriously.

Mr. Baron. So it is your impression that Mr. bulles had
heara comments by the President previéus to this meeting?

Mr. Dillon. Certainly.

Mr. Baron. Comments which called for "very straight-
forward action?"

Mr. Dillion. Yes, I think that is certainly what this

T
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éaid. So I think that whatever records there are of NSC
meetings before that, that they may not have kept such records
in detail. And that meeting -- if ydu can find any meeting
that Mr. Johnson took the notes of just §rior to that, that

is probably the meeting.

Mr. Baron. So you would assume that the language used
by the President, heard by Mr. Johnson, which ihdicated to
Mr. Johnson that an assassination was at the least acceptable
means of getting rid of Lumumba, is probably the language
referred to here by Mr, Dulles?

Mr. Dillon. It would sound so, seems SoO.

Mr. Baron. And would you also assume, ffom your knowiedge
of Special Group meetings and the way the minutes were written
up, that very straightforward action could be a euphemism for
assassination?

Mr. Dillon. No, I wouldn't necessarily think that. It
wculd just mean strong action to do something to get rid of
Lumumba, it could be a revolution, it could be anything. I
think it comes here that they would not necessarily rule out
consideration of any particular activity. I.would think, if
they were really going to mount something, they probably would
have come back to the Group. But they mighﬁ not have. And
again, getting baék to Mr. Dulles, I do not think he would
have gone back to the President and said, now, I have got the

capability to assassinate Lumumba, and I am going to do it

TOP SECRET
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next week if I have your permission, sir. He wouldn't have

done that. Because where I particula;ly remember this, or
get the feeling particularly strong,lis dating back to
something that Senator Hart mentioned, tﬁe U-2 incident.
Allen Dulles' strong desire was to take the whole responsi-
bility for that, and resign, and be fired in disgrace,
publically, in order to protect the President. But the
Presideﬁt totally refused to accept any such way of handling
it.

Mr. Baron. So that says something not only about the
character of Allen Dulles, but the character of the President?

Mr. Dillon. ©Of both, yes.

Mr. Baron. That the President Qould be inerested in
taking responsibility for the orders that he had given?

Mr. Dillon. Yes. He was very strong that way. And Mr.
Dulles was so strong in wanting to protect the President that
he was willing to go out in disgrace, publicldisgrace after
ten years or.more of service to the Government, just to pro-
tect the President, although there was nothing that he had
responsibility for, primary responsibility.

Mr. Baron. From your knowledge of Special Group meetings
and minutes, it is your reading of this sentence that "it
was finally agreed that planning for the Congo would not
necessarily rule out consideration of any particular kind

of activity which might contribute to getting rid of Lumumba®
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- you.would read that sentence to indicate that an assassina-
tion was within the bounds of the kind of activity that might
be used to get rid of Lumumba?

Mr. Dillon. Yes, I would.

Mr. Baron. And you were commenting before that Mr. Dulles
might be expected by, say, some members of the Special Group,
to return to the Special Group if an assassination were béing
mounted?

Mr., Dillon. Not only that, but anything being mounted,

I mean whatever action to get rid of Lumumba, I think he would
probably come back and say what we are doing.

Mr. Baron. But it is also your statement that, due té
the mode of operating of Allen Dulles, and.his character,
it is guite conceivable that he wouldn't have returned to the
Special Group with such an operation?

Mr. Dillon. That might be, although it is more likely
that what he really said was that he wouldn't réturn to the
President.

Mr. Baron. In order to protect the President?

Mr. Dillon. 1In order to protect the President. I think
he had looked on other officials in the Government as quite
different from the President,,éll of the, in other words, as
expendable, and he probably would be less likely to go and
do things totally on his own. And his whole idea was to

protect the President as the public representative of the US
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from any bad publicity in connection wifh this or any other
similar thing. |

Mr. Baron. But based on the discussion at this meeting
yvou would assume that the CIA would'have.the authority to
proceed to mount an assassination effért against Lumumba?

Mr., Dillon. 'No, I said that they would certainly have the
authority to pla%. It is a close guestion whetﬁer this would
be enough to actually go ahead with it. But certainly the way
this thing worked, as far as I know, they didn't do anything

just on their own. I think they would have checked back at

. least with the senior people in the State Department or the

Defense Department.

Mr. Dawson. Would they have done that in such a way that

it would be available to appear on the public record at any

time?
Mr. Dillon. Maybe not. It might have just been a call

from the Secretary of State, Mr. Herter, or possibly the

‘Secretary of Defense.

Mr, Baron. Do you have any independent recollection --

Mr. Dillon. =-- and Gordon Gray. I think they would have
kept him ﬁotified, because he was sort of central in this
thing, they wouldn't do anything without his at least knowing
about it.

Mr.vBaron. Did you have any independent recollection of

being made aware of this Special Group meeting that we have
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been discussing before you saw the minutes today?

Mr. Dillon. No, I did not.

‘Mr. Baron. Let me show you now what we will marke as
Exhibit 4, which ie minutes of the Speciel Group of September
8, 1960, and point you toward the passage on the second page
that refers to the Congo.where Gordon Gray indicates that
"there is top level feeling thativiﬁorous_acﬁioh.wOuldQnotrbe;
a mistake."”

{The--ahove réferréd- to document
was marked Dillon Exhibit Ne.‘

4 for identification.)
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Mr. Baron. Do you have any independent recolleciton of
beiné made aware of this meeting?

Mr. Dillon. No, I do not.

Mr. Baron. Is tﬁis conéonant»with your understanding of
the policy at the highest levels of the American Government
toward Lumumba at this time?

Mr. Dillon. It fits iniz with what I understood was the
general policy that we Were very concefned with.

Mr..Baron. Do you recall that at this period of time, in
early September, Lumumba had just been deposed, and there was
a struggle going on between Lumumba and Kasavubu for power
which culminated in.a coup on September l4th by Mobutu and
on the 13th of September Lunumba entered the protective
custody of the United Nations forces in Leopoldville, do you
‘recall that chain of events?

Mr. Dillon. . No. I knew that at some point there was a

time.

Mr. Baron. Are you aware that in early September Soviet
planes and Soviet trucks had gone to Stanleyville?

ﬁr. Dillon. If you tell me that is the case, I think it
does refresh my memory, because I do know -~ I do remember
that we were very concerned about that sor£ of action by the
Soviets. |

Mr. Baron. And were you aware that Stanleyville was the

V2.423556 Page 100 ?@ P %E@@E? |
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% 1 stronghold of Lumumba and his supporters?
it
<
“ o Mr. Dillon. No, I don't recall that.
<
g 3 } Mr. Baron. Dut you do recall that at that point there was
g 4 concern at‘higher levels in the State Department’over the
5 connection between Lumumba and the Soviets?
6 Mr. Dillon. Yes, very much so.
> Mr. Baron. Let me show you Exhibit 5, which is "minutes
8 of the National Security Council meeting of September 21,
9 1960.
10 (The abcve referred to document
11 was marked Dillon Exhibit No. 5
12 for identification.)
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Mr. Dillon. Yes, I seeznow that I attended this as ‘Acting
Secretary of State, this particular meeting.

Mr. Baron. And do you recall‘thé discussion reported in
those minutes of affairs in the Congo, tﬁat there was the
fear of Egyptian influence on ?he Congo situation on the part
of Lumumba, and that there was some pressure being brought to
reconcile Kasavutu and Lumumba?

Mr. Dillon. ©No, I don't recall any of the details of this
meeting. I don't recall the meeting itslef. But it fits
right in with the general feeling about the problem, the way
vou looked at the Congo problems.

Mr. Baron. The minutes refer to a visa application for

representative of the Congo Government before the United
Nations? |

Mr. Dillon. It would certéinly refer to his desire to comp
to the United Nations to get out of the Congo, where he had
been deposed. Whether he cared much whether we recognized
him as the legitimate representative or not I would doubt.
I don't think he had much interest in what we recognized.
But I think it does show that he wanted to get out. And this
was a way of getting out.

And he also probhably wanted to go to the UN and make a big

complaint there.
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Mr. Baron. The last paragraph of those minutes quote
Mr. bulles as saying: "“The Soviet ships off the African
Coast were apparently a&aiting a clarification of the situation.
Mobutu appeared to be the effective powef in the Congo for the
moment, but Lumumba was not yet disposed of and remained a
grave danger as long as he was not disposed of."

Did Mr. Dulles make those remarks? |

Mr. Dillon. I don't recall those particular remarks.
Bﬁt he could have. But again, there my own interpretation,
"disposed of" wouldn't necessarily only be assassinated, it
would be gotten out of the Congo to some place where he was
neutralized.and couldn't come back in, and you could be sure
he was done with.

Mr. Baron. But assassination would have been one of the
means of disposing of Lumumba, that would have been acceptablep

Mr. Dillon. I guess the word "disposed" could mean that.
But that strikes me as rather surprising, because I would
think once he was out of office, our concern would have been
deescalated to some extent, it would have been more to find
some way, which should have been perfectly possible, of
gettingﬁhim out, or locking him up, or anything.

Mr. Baron. Let me represent to you that the report of
the United Nations investigation of the circumstances
surrounding Lumumba's death, which was not reported until

February of 1961, indicated that at this time, in late
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September of 1960, Lumumba was in the custody of the United
Natiéns tréops, who were actually protecting him at his
residence in Leopoldville, not restréining him from leaving,
but there was a Congolese guard surrounding'the UN troopé )
who were prepared to arrest Lumumba if he did leave his
residence.

Mr. Dillon. I think I recall that now, because it is
rather unusual circumstances.

Mr. Baron. And then apparently in the middle of Qctober
the UN had refused to surrender Lumumba to the Congolese Army;
who had come withiantarrest warrant for Lumﬁmba. Is it your
understanding that during this period of time,beven after.
Lumumba was in the protective custody of the United Nations,
he was still cbnsidered a potential threat and volatile force
in the Congo by the US?

Mr. Dillon. I would imagine so. 2And I would not be at
all surprised if the then rulers or officials of the
Congolese Government that succeeded Lumumba were concerned
about it, because he had this tremendous ability to stir up a
crowd or a group. And if he could have gotten out and started
to télk to the battalionvof the Congolese Army, he probably
would have had them in the palm of ﬁis hand in five minutes.

Mr. Baron. We had testimony from a CIA officer, who said
he had been dispatchéd to the Congo by CIA Headquarters for

the purpose of trying to secure Lumumba's escape from UN

e e
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custody, and place him in the hands of the Congolese Army,
where the CIA officer's expectation was fhat Lumumba would
recéive a trial, and probably capital punishment at the hands
of the Congolese Army. Does this missioh of the CIA officgr
seem to conform to your own idea of US policy at that time
toward Lumumba?

Mr. Dillon. Yes, I think very much so.

Mr. Baron. Now, we also have testimony that the CIA
Chief of Station in the Congo was visited by a representative
from CIA Headquarters who supplied him with lethal biological
agents and the equipment with which to administer these
substances for the purpoée of assassinating Lumumba, and that
he, the Chief of Station, was charged with"suCh a mission,

which obviously he never carried out successfully. Have you

Mr. Dillon. No, I never have.
Mr. Baron. Would such an operation seem consonant with

the kinds of discussions that had been recounted in those

Mr. Dillon. Well, to the extent particularly that one
document you have showed me ~--—

Mr. Baron. The August 23rd meeting?

Mr. Dillon. Yes -- if assassination is a real possikility}
as that indicates, this would be a way to do it. But I never

heard of it at the time, and I didn't realize that there was
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any such capacity for the use of biological things. I read

about that and heard about it in the Rockefeller Commission - 7
with Castro, but not about thig.

Mr. Dawson. Would you expect to be fold about the
operational @etail?

Mr. Dill%n. Not in detail. But I am rather surprised

| ,

that it went this fa; and in my position I didn't know some-
thing abcut it. It may be that they felt that it was so tight
that there was no need to tell anyone except the Secretary of
State. I assume Secretary Herter would have known about it.

Mr. Baron. Would it be possible that the CIA would feel
that the "plausible deniabiliﬁy" would have covered someoﬁe
in your position?

Mr. Dillon. It could have, if they felt that they had a

clearcut --

Mr. Baron. -- mandate to proceed with an assassination
operation?

Mx. Dillon. It is possible. That is just supposition,

but it is possible. It may not really have been Mr. Dulles’
deéision.

Mr. Baron. Were you aware of any connection between the
CIA and the actual death of Patrice Lumumba?

Mr. Dillon. No.

Mr. Baron. Were you aware of any CIA sponsorship for the

coup which brought Mobutu into firm control of the Government
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in mid-September of 19607?

ﬂr. Dillon. Né, I was not aware of that.

Mr. Baron. And were you aware of any CIA ﬁlan to snatch
Lumumba from UN érotective custody‘and place him iﬁ the hénds
of the Congolese Army?

Mr. Dillon. No, I wasn't aware of that.

Mr. Dawson. Mr. Secretary, Mr. Baron has asked a lot of
questions about some of the factual parts of this. And I
would like to follow up on some of your statements about
Director Dulles' willingﬁess to protect the President. I
think you made a very interesting and forthright observation,
that he was very interested in keeping the President protected
from things which may cause embarasément to him.

Myr. Dillon. ©Not personally, bu£ that he though would
cause great embarrassment to the nation as well as to just
the Presidency, whereas if it was some individual, it is just
because it is the terrible Mr. Dullés and the terrible CIA,
it is not the nation. And the President is the nation. So
that it was a fairly deep feeling which went beyond .uvooinl
personality institutionally to the Presidency, which should
not be involved in this sort of thing.

Mr. Dawson. Did you investigate what may have been the
basis for your feeling, which is youf current feeling, that
thét was his way of éperation?

Mr. Dillon. I think that it was primarily -- I had known

ersscs vese 10n  TOP SECRET
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in mid-September of 196072

¥Mr. Dillon. wNo, I was not aware of that.

Mr. Baron. And were you aware of any CIA plan to snatch
Lumumba from UN protective custody and place him in the hands
of the Congolese Army?

Mr. Dillon. ©No, I wasn't aware of that.

Mr. Dawson. Mr. Secretary, Mr. Baron has asked a lot of
questions about some of the factual parts of this. And I
would like to follow up on some of yoﬁr statements about
Director Dulles' willingﬁess to protect the President. I
think vou made a very interesting and forthright observation,
that he was very interested in keeping the President protected
from things which may cause embarassment to him.

Mr. Dillon. Not personally, but that he though would
cause great embarrassment to the nation as well as to just
the Presidency, whereas if it was some individual, it is just
because it is the terrible Mr. Dulles and the terrible CIA,
it is not the nation. And the President is the nation. So
that it was a fairly deep feeling which went beyond
personality institutionally to the Presidency, which should
not be involved in this sort of thing.

Mr. Dawson. Did you investigate what may have been the
basis for vour feeling, which is your current feeling, that
that was his way of éperation?

Mr. Dillon. I think that it was primarily -- I had known

TOP SECRET
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him weli over his eight years in the Foreign Service, and also
in the State Department. But it was highlichted bhecause this
experience in the U-2, in the first few days of this I was
Acting Secretary of State, and I had to bear the brunt of a
lot of that mix-up.

Mr. Dawson. Was Mr. Dulles generally a responsible
individual in whom the President placed great trust?

Mr. Dillon. Very much so, great trust.

Mr. Dawson. In his relationship with the President do
you believe that President Eisenhower Qas aware of Mr. Dulles'’
desire to protect him, President Eisenhower, from a great
embarrassment?

Mr. Dillon. I would think so. Of course, the U=-2 thing
made him aware of that, bécause it was not only Mr. Dulles'
view, but it was also the view of the State Department that
this was the correct procedure, that the President should take
whatever action was necessary eithér with Mr. Dulles or with
senior officials in the State Department, and blame them for
both, but not to accept thé responsibility himself if nothing
happened. And he disregarded our strong feelings on that.

Mr. Herter had just gotten back from a NATO meeting in
Turkey, and he made a special trip out to Camp David to urge
this on him, to warn him beforz he did assume responsibility
himself. 3But to no évail. Hagerty was very strong for the

President taking responsibility, because I think he had a
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little different view of this. I think he had a view that
the press looked on the President as someone who was not in
full charge of the State Department at time, and he thought
this would contribute to that, which would be very bad for
the President. So we were thinkiﬁq.of it more from the
international aspect. We had fhe contrary feeling.

Mr. Baroﬁ. Did the President’'s trust in Allen Dulles
diminish significantly after the U-2 affair.

Mr. Dillon. No, because there was nothing wrong with the

spebifically, it was flying on the day after he authorized it.
The only bolix that came was in the after events, where this
silly press release announcement was put out by NASA, I guess
it was, that this plane had“just been sort of flying arcund ang
got lost, or something like that. And we really had a very
difficult time about that at the morning meeting where ﬁhe
news came to us, which was out in the Virginia hills. The
President had a meeting of a restricted nature afterwards,
including me and Allen Dulles, the Secretary of Defense, and
Colonel Goodpastor.

Ané he put me in charge of handling the whole thing, and
gave me the responsibility. And he wasn't fully briefed on
all the cover storieé or anything of this nature. And I
went back to the State Department and was working diligently

oy

on this and talking to Mr. Dulles as to what we would say.
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And the next thing we knew suddenly the President told

Colonel Goodpastor to say that this was descended from the

State Department.

And the next thing we knew the statement came out from
the US frém NASA which made no seﬁse at all.

Ancd of course what had happened was that Hagerty =-- that
had been the routine thing, and when it came up lagerty Gas
to refer the press to NASA, and NASA, if they were referred,
had the cover story.

And Goodpastor -- I never quite found out what happened
in the White House, whether Goodpastor didn't get to Hagerty
or Hagerty didn't pay any attention to them, either way was
more likely, because Hagerty was way‘senior to Goodpastor
at that time, and they had done this, and he didn't know, he

had been at that little meeting with the President, he didn't

know that it was supposed to be in the State Department. And

that got everything off upside down. So we were trying to

explain how the US Government had put out this silly statement

which bore no relation to the facts, Qhén we knew the facts.

And of course at that time the Russians hadn't yet
announced that they had the pilot or anything. But we knew
that was likely, too. We knew that would happen. I thiﬁk it
followed electronically. And but it was because of this
White House bolix that htis had happened.

Mr. Dawson. The basis for Dulles' willingness throughout

TOP SECRET
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this period to protect the President was also -- I guess there

was some impact made upon his willingness after the U-2 crisis

Mr. Dillon. We still felt stronglv that that had been a
mistake, because it put Khrusﬁchev in a position where he
felt he had to break off the talks in Paris with the_President,
and so forth, which we felt would not have been the case
otherwise.

So this didn't change Mr. Dulles at all, it made him even
stronger in wanting to protect the President, because he knew
the President was difficult to protect.

Mr. Dawson. During the period following the U-2 crisis
you saw Director bulles.brief the Government on intelligence
operations?

Mr. Dillon. He did this at e&ery National Security
Council meeting. The format of the meetings were that the
neeting would be called to ofder by the President, and then
he would turn to Mr. Dulles for the intelligence briefing,
which was the first item of business in all those meetings.

Mr. Dawsorn. Oﬁ those occasions did Mr. Dulles attempt to
tell the President enough where he would have some idea of
wnat was going on, but not tell him directly what was
happening?

Mr., Dillon. Most of the briefings were about intelligence

what other people were doing and what was happening. And it
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would only he exceptional when’tﬁey would deal with what we
were doing ourselves.

Mr. Dawson. Dealing with the iatter, when Mr. Dulles
wanted Presidential approval to mount an operation, how did he
go about achieving that or gaining that appfoval?

Mr. Dillon. I don't really know. I do know in regard,

to the U-2 flights, which had a very special procedure set up

Hh

whereby a piece of paper had to be signed in each case by the

e

Director of Central Intelligence, the Secretary of State, the
Secretary of Defense, ar Acting Secretary of Defense, and then
taken to the President and approved by him before the flight
could take place. And that was handled by General Goodpastor
rather than through r. Gray.

Mr. Dawson. Did that change after the U-2 crisis?
Mr. Dillon. Ho, that was the procedure.

Mr. Dawson. He knew what he was approving very clearly?

Mr. Dillon. He had been right up to this time and that
was the case with the U-2; After the U-2 crisis there weren't
any more U-2 flights, and that procedure came to a sudden end.

Mr. Dawson. In other intelligence operations which you
brought up which were regquired to be brought before the
Special Group --

Mr. Dillon. I don't recall that there were any. But if
it was needed, I don't know who would do it, but it would be

through the person who would know the most about it. And
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that would be General Goodpastor, because he was very close
to the President, although he was a relatively junior officer
at that time, he was a young colonel -- I think he may have
even been a major when he started there in the White House.
But he was sort of Staff Secretary to the President on all
those relations with the Pentagon and the CIA and the State
Department. If vou wanted to see the President on something

important, it was generally through General Goodpastor rather

“than through Gordon Gray. And Gordon Gray handled most of

the detailed mechanics of setting up meetings, and that sort
of thing. He was not as much a personal assistant to the
President. And that job was held by General Goodpastor.

Mr. Dawson. But in circumstances where the President was
going to be made aware of attempts to overthrow a government,
in front of a number of peopleviike the Special Group of the
National Security Council, were you pri&y to some of those
occurances?

Mr. Dillon. I don't ever recall one.

Mr. Dawson. You don't recall instances where an attempt
or discussion to overthrow a government or anything more
sinister than an assassination was brought up?

Mr. Dillon. WNo, except the discussion of preparing a
capacity to invade Cuba. That was consideréd. /And we have
the minutes on that.A That was considered a number of times

and reported a number of times.
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- Mr. Dawson. After an intelligence operation bhlows, in
the sense that it is uncovered in connection with the Govern-
ment of_the US is found, are vyou aware that oftentimes a
routine order goes out to estand down intelligence, to take
positiveactions in that area, are you aware of that standard
operating procedure?

Mr. Dillon. I don'£ quite understand what your gquestion
is there.

Mr. Dawson. After the U-2 crisis did we for a period of
time stop agressive intelligence actions against the Soviet
Union?

Mr. Dillon. Yes, I think that was natural.

Mr. Dawson. That was my question. That is a routine
matter?

Mr. Dillon. That was a natural thing. Obviously we
stopped the U-2 flights because we knew they had the capacity
td:ﬁhoot them down, and so it was no use doing it again.

And I would imagine we probably eased off on the electronic
flights along the coasts of the Soviet Union, and kept them
further away, or disconinued them for awhile.

Mr. Dawson. Are you aware of a similar stand down order
having been issued after Lumumba was captured?

Mr. Dillon. No..

Mr. Baron. Mr. Secretary, you mentioned earlier that you

might have been away from Washington in August of 1960 when
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this Special Group meeting took place on August 25th, is that
correct?

» Mr. Dillon. Yes, there is a possibility, becauée August
was the month, if one was going to take any time off in the
summer, it was likely to he in August.

Mr. Dawson. ItAwas best to take it off during August
hecause of the miserable summers?

Mr. Dillon. Yes. 2And my family had a éummer place where
I had gone since childhood in Maine, and it was easy to get to
I do have enough recollection to know I was there a couple of
timas when I had to get hack for a Security Council meeting
and there were certain weather problems from the Coast of
Maine. I recall one time, it could have bheen this year, or it
could have been a year earlier. But I know I was there those
sumners for a few days. And it could have been in August.

Mr. Baron. In reference to the meeting at the Pentagon
that was the subject of your affidavit, you mentioned to me
hefore we began this testimony today that from what you have
read recently, it is your impression that the remark of the
CIA representative at that meeting which, as you have said,
in effect turned off the suggestion of an assassination
attempt against Lumunba, might have been made simply because
the group was too large for such a discussion?

Mr. Dilion. It ﬁight have been -- I cald that because of

what I have learned since, and I have learned more today --
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but they did try to develop such a capacity versus Castro.
But as I have thought about it since we talked, I think that
is less likely. I think it is more likely that it might have
been the beginning of this whole idea on the CIA's part that
they should develop such a capacity. And maybe they didn't
have it then and went éo work to develop it beginning in
August.

Mr. Baron. 5o wittingly yvou have been present at the
creation?

Mr. Dillon. The early stages, ves.

Mr. Baron. I have no furtﬁer questions.

I would simply like to say that the Committee is extremely
appreciateive of your coming here‘today. This is obviously
a difficult and unpleasant subject to discuss. And you have
been tremendously informative on it. So thank .vou very much.

Mr. Dillon. I wish I could be more so. But the details
of what happenecd at that time, tﬁé day to day details, have
really departed from my mind. It is only those few relatively
unusual things that I still recall. And any way I can help
I am glad to.

Mr. Baron. There may be one way vou can help right now.
I know that before we: started today Bill Miller, the Staff
Director of the Committee, indicated that the Committee would
be interested in hearing you out at great length on policy

recommendations in the intelligence field gathered bhoth from
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your experience in the State Department and the Treasury
Department, and also your recent service on the Rockefeller
Commission. But I wondered specifically, in reference to the
assassination area, where we faced the need to tie up our
investigations as soon as possible, and perhaps make some
recommendations as soon as possible, do you have any specific
suggestions?

Mr. Dillon. No, I don't think so. I think that the record
has shown that this is the type of thing that the US
Government or any of its branches cannot and should not engade
in. And I doubt very much that there will be anv repitition
of this sort of thing that toék place in the early sixties,
which I guess was predicated on the belief that something like
that could be done in exceptional circumstances without its
being surfaced and being connected with the US. And I think
even those who believed that such action was morally proper
and might have been in the best intersts of both the US and
the world wéuid think that the costs were too heavy if it was
ever traced back to the US. And the record seems to show that
it does get traced back. So I think that there will be a
general agreement among those who are the type of people who
would ordinarily think that such a thing should not be thought]
of as US Policy.

Mr. Baron. Are there any institutional changes that you

would suggest to prevent the use of assassination as a tool
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of foreign policy?

Mr. Dillon. The only thing is, -- I don't know just what
institutional changes ére really necessary, but there should
be the clarification that the Special Group, or whatever
name it is given for the Committee, would have to approve any
action by the CIA, whether it is assassination or military
action or anything else, in writing. I think that would be
fine. I think it is naivete to have the idea that thé
President has to approve anvthing like that. I tend to agree
with Mr. Dulles that vou shonld not o=t the President

personally involved in details of operations that might be

]

right. I am not judging just about

fde

on tha =dge of what
assassinations, but in any covert operation. The law now is
that the President has to approve any covert cperation. I
think that the result now will be that there wouldn't be
any. I think there may be times when we will need them, but

1

not violent ones. I have in mind such things as financial
help and such things as that. But I don't think the President]
ought personally to sign the checks.

Mr. Baron. Thank yvou again.

(Thereupon, at 5:15 p.m., the Committee was adjcurned,

subject to the call of the Chair.)

TOP SECRET
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’ AFFIDAVIT pl u bW Lrbeht

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA |
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA &5S5: é

I, C. Douglas Dillon, being first duly sworn, do upon oath
depose and state: :

From June 1959 until early January 1961, I served as Under _ !
Secretary of State. During approximately 35-40 percent of |
that time, I served as Acting Secretary of State because of ’
Secretary Herter's absence from Washington. |
Secretary Herter, who preceded me as Under Secretary of State, xed)
had served as the State Department representative on the 54/12 s
Committee, a predecessor of the present Forty Committee. When
I became Under Secretary, the President asked me to retain my
earlier responsibilities for foreign economic policy. Accord-
ingly, the Number 3 position in the Department of State was
designated as Under Secretary for Political Affairs. Robert
Murphy was appointed to this position _and took over the State
Department's responsibilities on the 54/12 Committee.

Because of the frequency of my service as Acting Secretary of
State, I was kept regularly informed of important 54/12 Com-

mittee decisions. On occasion I met with the 54/12 Committee
and participated in its deliberations.

During this entire period I have no recollection of any dis-
cussions or.decisions looking toward the assassination of
either Generalissimo Trujillo or Prime Minister Castro.

On one occasion in late July or early August of 1960, shortly
after Patrice Lumumba's visit to Washington, I attended a meet-
ing in the Pentagon at which the overall Congo problem was dis-
cussed. During the discussion, which covered a great variety

of matters, my recollection is that a question regarding the
possibility of an assassination attempt against Lumumba was
briefly raised. The CIA representative indicated that the Agency
did not undertake this sort of operation. This ended considera-
tion of this subject. With this one exception I never heard any
discussion of assassination attempts against anyone.

. _ . Dated this;>/ day of May, 1975.

2Ly, /L/

C. Dougfas Dlllon’

Subscribed and sworn to before me S
this/ixo day of May 1975,°' Y@ﬁj’?i;égg s
T L WO
/“ﬁuj 25’ <1<Ef:LA¢,~x el . ’Wfﬂ““i
Notary Bubliy ~ o : W\

1
’

District of Columbia
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30 June 1960

MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD
SUBJECT: Minutes of Special Graup Meeting,. 3% June 1960

PRESENT: Messrs. Merchant, Gray, Irwin, Gen, Cabell

/ o -
. :

3. Congo -

Gen. Cabell mentioned briefly the fact of the election of Joseph Ileo
to the Presidency of the Congo Senate, and the fact that we had assisted
him financially. He indicated that we in no way intend to claim full

- credit for his election but, particularly in view of the very close
coniest, we might have had some effect; and in any case we may have

bLLLlft,u some influecnce with thig .
imsa ith ¢ potentially useful individual.

Ny / 7. Cuba

In an informal conversation after Gen. Cabell's departure,

Mr. Gray expressed the opinion that the U.S. has taken publicly about -

all that it can afford to take from the Castro government; that public

opinion both here and abroad is probably beginning to feel that there is
_no limit as to how far this country can be pushed around; that this may

encourage other small countries to take a similar tack; and that the

longer we delay with effective economic and other action the harder we

may make it for ourselves.

Mr. Merchant and Mr. Irwin agreed, with the stipulaticn that
the United States should not take affirmative action until it is prepared
to follow through on a substantial scale.

THOMAS A. PARROTT
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.

to insist on a morc precise spelling out of individual or group
views.

Mr. Parrott also said that Mr. Macy had raisecd a related
point which Mr. Barnes and he had agreed had validity, and that
Mr. Barnes had undertaken to assure Macy that it would be given
adequate attention by the interagency planning group. This was a
concern expressed as to planning for the support - fiscal and otherwise -
of @ necw Cuban government immediately after a successful overturn
of the present one. Mr. Merchant said that he agrced fully with the
nccessity for making contingency plans of this sort, and had in fact
directed three wecks ago that State officials begin to draw them up.

-

\ D l'f/ -7
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THOMAS A. PARROTT
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knovws enough about the political attitudes of the members of the Frente,
particularly as to basic freedoms, their attitude toward restoration

of seizcd American property, etc. (In answer to this, Mr. Gray had
pointed out that the IFrente is composed of pcople who have broken
with Castro, at least on the basic philosophies.)

In an attempt to clarify the situation with respcct to the first
point, Mr. Parrott told the Group about last Monday's meeting with
Mr. Macy, at which Mr. Barnes had covered in considerable detail
all aspects of the Cuban project. " He said that he was at a loss to
understand how Macy could have received the impression that CIA
is not aware of dissident groups. He went on to say that in answer
to Mr. Macy's question as to the outlook, Mr. Barnes had stated -
and had developed at considerable length - the thesis that our view
was ong of limited optimism, and that he had explained in detail just
why this is so; this explanation had included specific comments on the
steps that have been, and are being, taken to identify such groups and
to assess their apparent leaders. Mr, Pagrott said further that the
‘point had been made forcibly to Macy that it would be out of the question {/
for CIA to attempt to mount an invasion of Cuba by itself, without the
participation of large numbers of disaffected individuals within the
country.

On the second point, Mr, Dulles said that we do ltnow a good
deal about the basic political sympathies of Frente members, and
cited as an example the position that had been taken as to the inclusion
of certain ultra-conservative grdups. He said that the Frente bad
issued a statement of its aims, which he summarized very broadly S
as being to preserve the principles of the revolution. He said that as .
to specific stands on restoration of U.S. property rights, etc., this
was thought to be unwise because it would give the F'rente the appearance
of being a tool of the Americans. He agreed, however, that Mr. Stans'
point was a valid one to bear in mind and said we would‘ccrtainly do
50. - He added that he expects to lunch with Mr. Stans in the near future
and would take that opportunity to discuss these matters further, as
appropriate.

. " Mr. Parrott said that there was no disagreement that the political
idcas of these individuals must be constantly assessed and must be
clearly cstablished before the operation actually comes off. He
added, however, that it should be borne in mind that once these
politically-screened individuals had issucd their general statement
of objectives, our primary operational task has been to hold the FRD
together, and that at this particular stage it would not be practical
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\14‘ Cuba
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- ' The DCI summarized the progress we have made in establishing
contact with certain dissident groups within Cuba. In this connection
he also noted the apparent fulfillment of a sabotage requirement which
had been levied on one of these groups as a test of its capabilitics
(after this action had been cleared with the Special Group).

7 He also said that we hope to have a paramilitary force of

~approximately 500 people ready to operate by November. In answer

to Mr. Irwin's question, he outlined two possible ways of initiating

‘the tactical combat phase.

Mr., Gray then told the Group of a talk he had had with the
Dircector of the Bureau of the Budget., The latter had told Mr. Gray
that he had discusscd the Cuban prbject with Mr. Macy and that as
a result of this discussion he, Mr. Stans, had two reservations that
he would like Gray to look into.

' One of these had to do with the statement by Macy that in his
discussion with CIA rcprescentatives in connection with the latest
withdrawal from the Reserve, he had reccived 'Yno evidence' that any
e{fective resistance had been identified within Cuba., (Mr. Gray had
answered that in the formal presentation last week, Mr. Dulles and
Mr., Bisgsell had mentioned a number of such groups. )

The second point had to do with a feeling that we might not
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outstanding intelligence, ability or drive, but that he is obviously
well motivated. Mr. Irwin asked whether there might be other
individuals of similar, although naturally lesser, stature in the church

hicrarchy who could be useful.

Mr. Merchant commented that the Catholic Church in Black
Africa is not a very substantial force. Mr. Dulles concurred in this,
but added that this would be something to keep in mind as appropriate.
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25 August 1960

MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD
SUBJECT: Minutes of Special Group Mceting, 25 August 1960

PRESENT: Messrs. Merchant, Gray, Irwin, Dulles

‘1. Congo

Mr. Parrott outlined broadly thrce (or as Mr. Dulles later
described them "2 1/2') operational lines that we are following in
mounting an anti-Lumumba campaion in the Congo. These included:
operations through the Christian Trade Unions;
the planned attempt of a Senator to arrange a vote of
no comniidence in Lumumba; and a brand new contact with an alieged

-leader ol certain independent labor groups. rie emphasized that the

latter had just come up and that we arec now in the process of assessing
the bona fides and capabilities of the individual.

The Group agreed that the action contemplated is very much:
in order. Mr. Gray commented, however, that his associates had
expressed extremely strong feelings on the necessity for very
straightforward action in this situation, and he wondered whether
the plans as outlined were sufficient to accomplish this. Mr. Dulles
replied that he had taken the comments referred to sceriously and had
every intention of proceeding as vigorously as the situation permits
or requires, but added that he must nccessarily put himself in a
position of interpreting instructions of this kind within the bounds of
necessity and capability. It was finally agreed that, planning for the

Congo would not necessarily rule out Y'consideration' of any particular -

Kind of activity which might contribute to getting rid of Lumwmba.

Mr. Irwin commented that certain individuals in Defensc have
given thought to the possibility of using high officials of the Catholic
Church in Africa to promote the gencral objectives of the West, In
this connection, he cited a preliminary asscessment which had been
made of the Negro Cardinal recently appointed by the Pope - the
assessment being that the individual in question is a man of not
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w4, Dominican Republic

Mr. Dulles inquired whether Mr. Merchant wanted to discuss
the proposal to dispatch 2 letter to Trujillo suggesting that the latter
retire from office. At Mr. Merchant's request, the DCI stated his
opinion, which was to the effect that he had considerable reservation
as to the efficacy or wisdom of such a letter. He said that it seemecd
to him much more useful to make a personal approach,which not only
stood a chance of being more effective, but also could be denied.

"He pointed out that a personal approach had been attempted some time
ago, but that the individual in question had not been able to carry it
off. He supggested that the approach might best be made by an
unofficial American, and that Mr. Pawley would be a better bet than
the previous individual.

Mr. Merchant said that he realized his own name had been
suggested, and that he was far from enthusiastic about the idea. He
said further that he has a visceral fceling against asking a Chief of
State to get out of office ~ either through tHe medium of a letter or
personal contact - particularly when we do not know who might succeed

cg and his pragmatism

might be somowhat intertwined.
B

Mr. Gray said that he was entirely opposed to having aay U. S.
official sign such a letter. He thcught that an unofficial letter might
be a different matter.

The conclusion of the Group was that it would be worth the
cifort to get Mr. Pawley to attempt a direct approach to the Benefactor;
it was noted that the chances of success are perhaps less than even,
but that no great harm could result.

/5. Congo

PO *2. W

There was a brief discussion of 'developments in the Congo and
the possibilities of effective action there. Mr. Gray said that he

hoped that Agency people in the field are fully awarecof the top-level
feeling in Washington that vigorous action would not be amiss.

C \\&/“/&)Cb\,\,é:t\-

THOMAS A. PARROTT
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N Mr. Dulles said he believed a warrent had been issued
for the arrest of Lumumba. Aside from Lumumba, Mobutu appzars
to be the only man in the Congo able to act with firmness. A
recent attempt to assassinate Mobutu had failed. Mr. Dulles
then reported that we had ettempted to provide Mobutu with
funds but that the guards protecting Mobutu had relieved our
messenger of the funds. We cannot get funds to Mobutu because
he does not have complete control over his guards. A new
development has been Mobutu's creation of a councll of advisers,
most of whom are graduate students. The 0ld ministers have
been turned out -of office and their offices have been taken
over for the councill, wnich is intended to carry on for a temp-
orary perlod. Mr. Dulles reported that the USSR had suffered
a severe blow to 1ts prestige in the Congo. However, he had
been surprised at the ease with which the Soviets were forced
out of the Congo. He believed that the Soviet diplomats,after
departing from the Congo, went to Accra but he did not know
whether they had moved on toward the USSR, Mr. Gray asked
whether the Sovlets were really quitting the Congo. Secretary
Dillon said the Soviet press has not Jet admitted that the
Soviets have quit the Congo. Mr. Dulles said the Soviet diplo-
mats indicated to the press before leaving that they would be
back. Secretary Dillon believed it was clear that the Soviets
had not given up in the Congo. Mr. Dulles reported that the
Soviet diplomats left the Congo so hurriedly that the Soviet
Eha merkings which they painted over the Conpgo markings on their
planes were still wet when they left. Mr. Dulles seid the
Soviet ships off the African coast were apparently awaiting
a clarification of the situation. HMobutu appeared to be the
effective power in the Cohgo for the moment but Lumumba was
not yet disposed of and remained a grave danger as long as .
he was not disposed of. == —

Mr. Dulles observed that the situation in Laos was still
confusing and that little progress had been made toward the
settlement of the crisis during the past week. The threctening
situation in Sam Neua Frovince, however, had been quieted as
a result of the dispatch of Laotian parachute troops to that
arca. -The situation remains troublesome because Pethet Lao
and Viet Minh forces could intervene at any time. The problem
of’ the conflicting governments 1n laocs is no nearer a settle-

. . ment.  The King has requested that General Ouane and General
FPhoumi call upon him. A skirmish betwecen Phoumi's forces and
Vientiane forces has been reported at Fak Sane, but little
bloodshed resulted. Apparently, Fhoumi has adopted tactics
of carrying on a war of nerves against Vientiane. Therc has
. been firing across the Mekong Rlver into the city and Phoumi .
apparently intends to starve out the government. Meanwhile, o R
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kept wnder continuing scrutiny by all interested

™ departments and agencies to ensure that it scrves
the purposes of relarding the growth of the war
potential of the Sinc-Soviet Bloc and reduclng its
unity. " Hoted that, with respect to parsgraph 1l of
NSC 5704/3, U.S. export controls over such materiels,
equipeent, technology and services as can be unilater-
ally controlled by the United States may be imposed
not only to achieve a worthwhile adverse impact on
the war potentisel of the Europ=an Soviet Bloc, but
alco to serve other U.S. policy objectives, especially
with regard to technology and services.

NOTE: The action in b above, os approved by the President,
subsequently transmitted to all holders of NSC 570&/3.

5. SIGNIFICANT WORLD DEVELOFMENTS AFFECTING U.S. SECURITY

Mr. Dulles said he would first sumsarize developnents in

the Congo. Several African states were making frantic efforts

to save Lummmbe. An interceptcd message between Egypt and CGhana

indicates that Nesser is urging the UAR, Ghana, end Guinea to

concentrate their forces in Leopoldville end bring pressurzs to

bear for the maintenance of Lumumba as FPrime Minister. Mr.Dulles

remerked that the bulk of the UAR forces now in the Congo had
N been placed edvisedly in north Equateur Province, while the
Guines forces were in the northern part of Leopoldville Province.
Intercepted messages also indiceted that Nasser hed asked that
a council be formed in Leopoldville consisting of the diplomatic
representatives of the UAR, Ghana, and Guinea in that city. The
UAR Ambassador to the Congo had been directed, in concert with
the Ambassadors of Ghena, Cuinea and lorocco to attempt to per-
suade Kasavubu to effect a reconciliation with Lumumba. On Sep-
tember 20 Kasavubu had anncunced that he had reached no egreement
with Lumumba but the latter had later displayed a piece of paper
pwuporting to be an agreement with Kasavubu.

Secretary Dillon reported that Lumwaba had requested a visa

for travel to New York as the representative of the Congo to

the UN and had elso requested & visa as an official of the Govern-

ment of the Congo. We had denied both requests for visas. How-
“ever, if Lumumba asked for a visa to visit the U.S. as a private

citizen, we would have difficulty in turning him down.Mr.Dillon

added that the Congo Government declares it will arrest Lunumbe

if he attempts to leave the country.

1h. ' ' ' " TOP SECRET
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8 September 1960
MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD
‘SUBJ‘ECT: Minutes of Special Group - MMestingy, & Seprember 1960

PRESENT: Messrs. Merchant, Douglas, Gray, Dulles

4

1. Supply Drop to Cuban Dissidents

Mr. Parrott cutlined the proposed supply drop to Cuban
dissidents in the Escambray. After brief discussion, the Group
approved the project as presented. Mr. Parrott asked whether
approval could be granted at this time for continuing missions of
a similar nature to this greoup or other bodies of dissidents, The

with Mxr, Dulle
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members could be notified by telephone, without the necessity of
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convening a meeting.
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RIDEL CASTRO THTERVIEWED T DAGENS NW{HPTTR

-

Stoekholm DAGENS NYHETIR in Swedish 3 Jul 75 pp 1, 12 LD

Longer Wants To Assassinate te'"]

{Excerpts] Havana, ? July=--For a man who has for many yvears been on the CIA death
1ist, Cuba's leader Fidel Castro looked remarkably unconcerned, He sat on a sofa
in the Swedish Embassy a fow hourg before Olof Polme's departure from Ccuba and vhen
he was questioned.about the CIA‘S repeated attempts to assassinate him, he raised
both hands to the ceiling in a gesture of resignation:

H

f

E

|

!

}

; » ‘l L1 ..

.J (1ats Holmherg interview with Cuban Prime Minluter Castro: 'The United States Vo

ridiculous,” Fidel sald, "to hzar today of disclosures of new assassination plans when

\ o “Good Tord," he said. "Wec have known all that for a long time. It seems a little
E _here in Cuba we already knew of them.
| .

"Yet what is now being disclosed in the United States is only a small part,” he said.
"o could deseribe a dozen similar assassination plans and ve will also do s0 when

: : R "
the U.S. investigations are over. 4 J—

" But he did not belleve that he ran the risk of belng assasﬁinated by the CIA any‘

longer. - .
"If there are such plans today, we at lesst, do not know of then.,® he sald. "I
belleve that the United Stateés 1s no longer so interested in assassinating me--and
T believe that it has accepted the Cuban revolution as a fact and that sooner or
Jater 1t must come to an agreement with us,

"But no one can be absolutely certain," he said,

;~Raise§ Eyebrows

i ) - What Fildel Castro sald while séated on tha Swedish FEmbasay sofa will cause some
. " gyebrows to be ralsed in many countries which Cuba has accepted as international

5 .. allies.

One of the key phr&ses of Olof Palme!sLatin American trip has been "a new cconomle

- world order." Tt in a term which embraces small countries' rights to control their
natural resources, and in both the oill pouver, Venezuela, and the potential oll power,
Mexico, Olof Palme's hosts have adopted the concept with enthuslasm.

When Pidel Castro cxplailned his own skepticiam concerning Lalk of "a new economle
world order” after dinner ab the Swedish Tmbassy, he did so in a violent attnek on
the world's oil-producing countries.

He believed that a new world order could not be created by the introduction of new
privileges for a new group of countries.

The Poor Are Affected

- .. - ~N 7 .
(; '\V{-;} {-(&ﬁ;ﬂ;& insufficlent to demand that all countries have control over thelr own raw
S - materials,” he sald. "A11 privileges are created at another's expense, and today
’ : {1t 4s not the industrialized countries which are affected by the ofl countrics!?
J““— 14 1975profits but the poor countrlies which do noet have oil, :

|G

5
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"How can you compare cocon and ol17" he asiced;r "What benafit is 1t to countrles like
Sri Ianla and Tanzania that all countries contrel thair rai materials when all this -~ - . T
peans to them 1s that they must pay wmore for both oil and industrial goods? : : B

"I am not speaking for myself," he explained. "We receive oil from Lihe USSR on favorable
teras, .But if the oil cowuntries demand solidarity from the Third World, they uust ‘
concern themselves wlth the problems of the Third VWorld., fThey are, as yob, rcluetant

to do this, ‘ o :

"/hare has the oil revenue gone?" he asked, and he answered the question, T el
"It has been’depoéited in the economies of the industrial world and has ﬁeen used for’

arms purchases, The industrialized countries will emerge from the econoumlc crilsis stronger e
than ever. It will be the developing countries vhich will be affeched.'’ : o L

Thay Do Mot Dare
. Pldel Cactro fell silent and he looked at thée Swedish Journalists with an cxpresslon of B
- genulne alara, IR : ' L . . ,

Do you think I am speaking too severely?" he asked worriedly. "But you must under- -
" piand that soweonae nust talk abvout thls. There is no one else who dares, since all
ars hoplng for loans from the oli cowntries," - . . : e e » SRR

And he gave those wnho sat next to him. a comforting slap on the back.
- In variéws Tatin American countriles Iatin America Is described today as a changing N
continent. and in both Mexico and Venezuela Qlof Palme listened to the rovolutionary T
and antl-lmperialist diatrives which are increasingly:-part of both these countries? S p

official language. . : : T ‘ : H

Fidel Caztro did not appear especlally impressed by this change. Ye did not mention
Mexico and Venezuela at all when he was asked about the prospects for social revolution : S
in South America--but he did mention the military governmants of Peru and Pananma, vy

Better 'Than HNothing » : - : ) : : _ ‘ . »

"No path toward revolution can be ruled out," L sald, "and we aro wvatching the
progreasive regimes in Peru and Panoma with great interest., It 1o memningless to
discuss whether an armed struggle 1s necessary Lfor revolution--all that can be aaid

13 that a revolution wust be based on real force, vwhether 1t be in Chile or Cuba,"

lo
vnilch, by their own assurances, arce revolutlonary, and he thought for
before answering: "It is better than nothing." -

smiled sadly vimen-asked for hils opindon of tne governments in Venezuela and Mexico,
a long time

Someone asked 1f 1t is true that Cuba 1s recelving economle adld from the USSR in
conflict with 1ts own ideology and that 1t has its “stomach in Mescow and 1ts head in

Peking.

Pidel Castro was oobviously upset by the guestion. ’ ) .

"It was not they who contrived the Cuban revolution,™ he said, "it was us,  But the
: USSR helped us when no one olsg would, and wa cannct forget that. We have not com-
” promlsed srith ¢ither the USSR or anyone else, and who ¢lse could have helped us?

The Unlted States?”
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THE EVENING STAR (Washington), Monday, S September 1963,
FPour Star Edition, page B 4, Columns 4 - 5

"Goldwater's Toughness Challenged by Castro"

by Daniel Harker, AP Staff Writer
_ «... Bitterly denouncing what he called recent U.S.
- prompted raids on Cuban territoxry, Mr.'Castro said:

14

'We are prepared to fight thEﬂ and answexr
in kind. U.S. leaders should think thait if
they are aiding terrorist plans to eliminate
Cuban leaders, they themselves will not be
safe. ' -

' *'The U.S. is always ready to negotlaho

and make promises which later it will not honor.
- This has happened to promises made during the

October crisis. They nave been broken as can

be seen with new attacks; :

'But I warn this is leading’ to a very. . L Y
dangerous situation that could lead to a ’ ' ’
. wWorse CrlSlS than October Se...t"

[From an. 1mpr0mptu interview given by Castrc at a BraZLllan
Embassy receptlon this veek ]




TIHE-PICAYUNE, New Orleans, Monday, 9 September l963,'page 7,
- Columns -5 - 7 : : '

"Castro Blasts Raids on Cuba. Says U.S. Leaders
Imperiled by Aid to Rebels.” :

This item was introduced by an editor's note
referring to the fact that Castro had turned
up at a Brazilian Embassy reception Saturday
night (7 September) where he had submitted to
- an impromptu interview. Harker's account of
the interview reached New York Sunday after-
noon. :

"Havana (AP) - Prime Minister Fidel Castro
said Saturday night: ‘U.S. leaders would he
in danger if they helped in any attempt to do
*way with leaders of Cuba.'"

"Bitterly denounc1ng whdt he called
recent U.S. prompted raids on Cuban territory,
Castro said:. 'We are prepared to fight them
and answer in kind. . U.S. leaders should think
that if they are aiding terrorist plans to
eliminate Cuban leaders,_they themselves will .
not be safe.'" ' : -
4 “.-..World affalrs “e seemed to be
'epterlng a more peaceful climate a few days
~ ago, but now this tand has changed w1th
,attacks. L

“'The U.S. is always ready to negotiate
and make promises which later it will not honor.
This has happened to promises made during the
Cctober crisis. They have been broken as can.
be seen w1th ‘new attacka-

"But I warn this is ~leading to a’Very
dangerous situation that could lead to a worse
crisis than October's....'" '

g mzﬂ}?ﬂm
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In July, IJ 1
groups i 0 the "Unidad Fesistoncla

Mia=1950, "La Cruz' commtorvevolutionary ﬁ"cup Tewler Sague, & "ganstar,”
andd Cuhwia Fanos in sied thvcugh Funte Hicacos zone i Matanzas
Proviner fur o plc a;a et Gastro ond nthar LprruriS‘ and sabotage. THT,
PEVE VGPS. tig fo, & high-powered rifle, and Targe quantities
oF anmnunitd 1a DIf

unterravoietionary groups were treined and armed by

i
aavs grosp oﬁr@“tmn by the Cik 1nside Cuba. lWeaponry
¢ weapans, high-npowered vifles with scopes, ammunition,

HMarch, 1961, variocus oo

the CIA, and nfilivated throush the north of §1Vﬁﬂd, to assassinate Casfro
and support the Bay of Pigv wvasicn,  Huamberto Sori daein «nd four othey
fndividuats nfiltrated to coordinate the activities of various

o O n

-~
= i
B o

Y
ineiuded aJi>u
and explosive

June, 1961, the “Frante Revelucionario Democratico" (FRD) met with individual
tnfiltrated into Cuba with dnstructions for a plot against Castro. Jeaeps
with bazookas were placed in & gsrage at an intersection in Havana and a
xruck with grenades was placed in sports city. Plen was to ambush Castro

nd other leaders. Two participants -- Guiliernmo Caula Ferrer and Higinio.
Pﬂnﬁnnﬂz‘-~ sald when arvested that the CIA was in charge, and that contact
was maintained thrn”"r Guantenams and the Swiss Embassy.

» after Bay of Pigs, CIA worked to consoiidate rounterrevoluffonaﬁy
'olndted Resistance) o"qunihatfon. Jose

Pujals Maderos made ap undevrcover visit to the Unitoed States to mast with CIA
officers Jsm Bender (nr Bouldingl, Harold WiJth and Cari Hitch. There Moderos
was appointed nead of CIA UUHI&VI“h, in Cube in place of the arrested A]drcdo

Izagu?rrc. Programs includad

selfaggression” against Guantanimo to Justif

counter-atiacks on olher wnunfr es to provoke war against Cuba.

(4)

October 3

vuly 28, 1961, through ths
s

infittration of CIA agents Emilio Adol¥o Rivero
(Sprandy, fdolfo Mend n

} sra (Raul) and Jorge Garcia Rubio {(Tony) and others,
Ttad Peoststance group du"einpuﬁ a plot against lastro during the
26th of July ceiebretion fn Oriente Proviinge.

Ty 26, 1951, the same group planned snother plot Lhe same day against
0 during a relly at Revelution Squarz. %sotingJ were held at the
antanamy Navat Base, whure war matevial, including targe quantities
11 arms, was supplied hy base commander Captain Cavrl E. Schenweias

APlso i Juiy, 1961, girff,hJ against Castro was undertaken by representatives
of "3G de Noviembre,” "Movimento **vg?uriond”io asl Pueblo,” and “Frente
Revoiucionario P"nmcwaiiwn " The assassination attempt was to be carried -

_ contects ahroaa with Tony Varona, Manuel Ray and Aureliano
Sanchez Arango, and through Admiral Burke and CIA agents on Guantenamno.
%ﬂepﬁn included explosives, mortars. ngh-powered rifles, and 30-caliber
machine gunc.

he home of Celiz Sanchez Manduley in Vedado. CIA instructions
fh
1

September 13, 1461, the sane qru:n‘ Tisted 1n (6) above, in contact with the
"“Movimiento dﬂ-Recaperac? n Revolunicnaria" (MIR), led by Juan Jose Martore
Silva, made an attempt on the Tite of Dr. Car.us Rafael Rodriguez when he
was returning from Matanzas to Havena., They worked with a LIm agant In
Iatﬂn?av and a countervevotutionary hdﬂd theve. Weapons inciu'ed automatic
hanagauns, machine quns, and a high-powercd vifle with telescopic site.

?96?, the MRR and "I1 Frente del Escambray,"” under CIA diraction,
agreecd upon a plan for sabolags in Havena, timed to coincide with the return
of Cuban Prn igent Osvalds Torradn from Punta det Este. A bazooka was 10 be
frad toward the Vresident at th former presidential palace Trom a nearby
apariment hullding, with the wit Jzaﬁx1 covered ny launching grenades against
the public.  Meapons rvecovered incloded autumetin rifles and grenade Taunchers.

\~_l -
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(9) In early 1962, with CIA instructions through Guantanamo, Jorge Luis Cuervo
Calvo reorganized several groups into the "Union de Unidades Revolucionarias"
(UDUR). A meeting was held to plan an uprising and discuss arrangements which
had been made to receive equipment through Guantanamo. CIA was pressing
both attempts against Castro and staged acts of agression against Guantanamo.
Calvo outlined “Plan 2" -- a scheme to kiil Foreign Minister Raul Roa, and
then attack other Cuban leaders who would attend the burial. 'The authors"
of the plan are listed as Cay Hernandezr and Cay Gispert and members of the
DRE organization headed by Julio Hernandez Rojo, listed as a CIA agent
infiltrated into Cuba. Weaponry included a double-barreled shotgun,
explosives, granades, and demolition timing devices, one labeled "Block
Demoiition, M5 Al."

In 1963 another consclidation of groups was carried out with CIA direction from

abroad through agent Nino Dlaz. The umbrella group was "Resistencia Civica
Anticomunista” (RCA), and 1t incorporated the "Ejercito de Liberacion Nacionat"

(ELN), "Mov1m1ent0 de Recuperacion Revoluctonaria® (MRR), and "Agrupacion
Montecrist!," among others. The overall objective, as instructed by the CIA,

was to create the impression of a strong internal resistance to Castro, and to
{nspire a deciston for armed intervention at the meeting of 0AS presidents. Again,
instructions came through Guantanamo.

(10} March 13, 1963, the RCA Initiated a plan to assassinate Castro from a house
near the Univeristy of Havana, by firing a mortar. People arrested included
Samuel Carballo Moreno, identified as a CIA agent. Attacks were to be made -
simultanecusty on the Committees for the Defense of the Revolution and on
Nationa] Revolutionary M11it1d sites. Bazookas, mortars and machine guns
were taken. : -

(11) Aprit 7, 1963, the RCA developed a plan {nvolving sixteen men armed with
pistols and fragmentation grenades, who were to attack Castro at the Latin
American Stadium. Those arrested were Enrigue Rodriguez Valdes (known as
“Mutgado"), Ricardo Lopez Cabrera, Onorio Torres Perdomo, and Jorge Carlos
Espinosa Escarles.

(12) July 26, 1963, the RCA grouping planned to assassinate the Minister of the
Armed Forces, Raul Castro, at Pevolution Square during the 26th of July
celebration. Leading those groups involved in the plot was Ibrahim Machin
Hernandez. :

(13) September 2B, 1963, another group was formed through a relat{onship with
CIA agent Pierre Owen Diez de Ure, who was a French citizen l1iving in
Cuba. Their plan was to dynamite sewaue pipes under the presidentfal palace.
de Ure confessed that he had been working for and giving information to the
CIA for a period of two years. g

(14) March, 1964, a plan to assassinate Castro by Mario Salabarria Aguiar, a
"gangster," who had contacts with the CIA through its agent Dr. Bernardo
Milanes Lopez, who sought support in Spain from Tony Varona and Juan Bo chy
1isted as friends of Salabarria. The CIA gave Salabarria weapons and "great
sums of money” for a scheme which 1nvolved installing a 30 or 50 caliber
machine gun *i a vehicle and waiting for Castro to pass by.

(15) M1d~1964, another plan to assassinate Castro was formulated by wembers of
"Movimiento de Liberacion Nacional," part of the RCA block controlled by the
CIA. The effort involved CIA agents Alberto and Ramon Grau Sierra, members
of a network headed by Ramon and Maria Leopoldina Grau Alsina, who attempted
to poison Castro in 1965. The mid-1964 plan called for throwing grenades
at Castro at the Latin American Stadium. Nine men were involved.

September, 1964, members of “Ejercito de Liberacion Nactanal®™ (ELN) and "Frente
Interno de Liberacion" (FIL), who had been engaged in intelligence for the CIA,
began, under CIA instructions, to seek unification.
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{16} Cna of the menpers of this urwu » Memeste Cubilles Perez, told Angel Migued
Arancibia Yivan, fu;undﬁ Geldus Renzols ans others of a plot against Castro
to occur an 17 S, Vedado.

) Jutio Lmar Criwz unr‘?iu, Fermin CGonzalez
Pﬂrb¢1io and Giraide Rewna Erne -~ wepbers; of an RCA sub-group
known a3 "Ejevcite de Liberacion Necianal® ~- vere working on a plot against
Castro in Santicgo de Tss Vegar, This plan was dropped in favor of a plan

to hit Castro at the Latin erViLu“ Stadium, with another group in a nearby
hutiding set up to Fire machine quns inte the crowd to create panic and
factlitate the escaps.

{(17) Tn early 1945, counterrevolutionard

(18) In Jdune, 1955, thers was an arrest of the grouwp baaded by Remon and Maria
Leopoldina Grau Aisina (see (1 ¥ above), wiich was part of the "Rescate"
“and "Movimiento Anticomsuniste Hevelucionario” ahAR} grougs sponsored by the
CIA. HMaria Leopoldina Grau had rec:\\ed CIA inchructions for poisoning
Castro at the Havena Libvre Hoifel. Jesus uommanzan? uuu a and Santos de la
Caridavaerez Nunez, members of JAP werg Lo carvy out the poisoning. When
this attemot fatled, unmL.F“ 500 ¢ u;e bottie of poison was sent by Tony
Varona., Maria Alsina, also kaown as "Polifa," also pecedved weapons with

-
]

stlancers and special Asuas¢1nas1 on vrojectites from the CIA.

(19) In July of 1965, there we's an arvest of a grow p vhlch represented another
CIA attempt o organize CUUﬁtQP?QVU?ULaJHCwi 5y thie tiwe under the name
"Unidad Resistencia.” This group developad a p?an to assassinate Castro
with a Thompson submashine gun at Yita Houva's rostaursnt, firing also at
the Ministry of Interlor ascross the street to create confusion and permit the
escape.  Equipment inciuded weapons and communications gear.

(20} Also in Y965, +hers was an avrest of former Cuban rommandzr Rolando Cubela
Secades.  Cubele was recrutted during & trip to Madrid by CIA agents Manuel
Artime, Jorge Robrene ["rhe Magleian”), Luis Enrique Trasancos. and Carlos
Tepadino. The plapning alse involvaed an official et the CJhan Embassy in
Madrid, Jose Luls Gonzales Gallarveta, and Alberto Blanco {or "E1 Loco").
In Madeia, Art 1m¢ “?UHYSLF boats, weapons and men for an invasion of Cuba
within 72 hours » suppory the assassination of Casira. Jz ‘ore returning
to Cubz, Cubaia rac&ived Teom Gailarrets a rifle with a telescopic site and
silencer.

by

(21) In mld-1965, twa groups with LIS connections and contacts in the United
States, the "Commandos LY snd the "Movlmiento 30 de Hovlembre," planned
to inviitrate Cube.  That effor: Wit s givan up, and instead they Tired from
qunboats at the "sonolarship zone” in [flramar and at the Rivaria Hotel. in
the direction ot the prasidertial vesidence.

¢
.
i
v

(22} In Mav, 1866, these sanc
rone in Havana with ;
frmando Romero Martianer and
Artdnin Cuests Valie - i
Cardsnas vere arvested,
DI, and some had bean
& mercnant vessel anchorac at the Catbarier Port .n L5 Ji?

¥
sion of arﬂqaa.r i?hg Castio. Tn the action
n ﬁiio Herminio Diaz Barcle were killed, and
lomanidss LY, end Eugenio Enrigue Zaldivar
d&i had heen trdkﬂeu 1v Pf rto Rico by the
Ui the homperdament o he "San Pascual,”
Yillas ﬁrov;nr».

la
nio
ue

{23} On March 17. 1967, ators fram the United States ~~ Felix

| ‘ i 1frade Martinez Diaz, and Gustavo Arsces Alvarez -- were
:t@mnting to lapd by sza Fragoss.  Thetr planned activity
stpate Castra snd conduch Jyvtawni ¢ sahotaye to crgate the image
of a Papbld? U@:i;?hy, to help counterrevolubionary grouns in the United
States got official backing., These poonls hu” hoon tradned by the CIA
thraugh "M-20-17," "RECE." "Los Pinos Muevos,” PComandos L." "Alpha-G68," and
other organ ifiiﬂﬂd, They kad autemacic rifles, boats, piastic explosives,
and communications acuipuent.

three Infiitrators
gz D

"
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(24) In 1971, a plan was prepared to assassinate Cestro on a visit to Chile.

The main protagonist was Jesus Dominquez Benitez, known as “The Islander,"
who had been arrested by the FBI in 1968 for promoting terrorist actions
inside the United States. In 1670 he had participated in an unsuccessful
attempt to infiltrate Cuba through Oriente Province and had sought refuge
at Guantanamo, where he was arrested for bond violation. Nonetheless, he

~-was free in 1971, to participate with the CIA, Chilean fascists, and Cuban
“counterrevolutionaries In a scheme to assassinate Castro using a gun concealed
in a television camera. He obtalned VYenezuelan press credentials from Cuban
exiles in that country. The plan was aborted. Those involved in the plot
feared for their 11ves because the plan did not insure their escape.

#ie
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CLOSING STATEMENT FROM CUBA DOCUMEMNT

We consider that the analveis of the informations we offer,
the publicly known, and the onesz that the American authorities
pogsess and have not been published, allows us to affirm that
the physical elimination of Cuban Revcolutionary leaders,
aapecially the Prime Minister Pidel Castyro Ruz, has beson

a reiterated policy of the United States through its subver-
sive agencies, making use of Cuban counterrevolutilonaries,
U.8. citizen and all kind of corrupted individuals, inside

the country as well as sbroad, wlthout taking into considera-
tion the victims thot would result from these actions.

With thie purpose, they have provided the participants with
a great number of weapong, explosives, technical means of
transportation and communication for the accompllshment

‘of their plans.

These are some of the connoted and proved facts of the
nunerous subversive activities that the CIA haz carried out
aimed to the assassination of the leaders of the Revolutionary
Governmnment of Cubsa.

15
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THE WHITE HOUSE

fOP SECRET-SENSITIVE WASHINGTON
EYES ONLY
November 12, 1964

- MEMCRANDUM FOR MR. BUNDY

SUBJECT: Shipments of Contaminating Elements to Cuba

1. Irefer to vour interest in hearing more about the
Fitzgerald operation which involves the current shipment
of contaminating elements to Cuba and which is aimed at
bringing about a breakdown of a substantial amount of

' Cuban machinery.

2. Attached is a copy of a memo which I beliéeve you drafted
Tor a meeting with the President on April 7, 1964. Item 5
would appear to cover the type of operation which Fitzgerald
is .now conducting. :

. I have not come across any minutes of the April 7 meeting.
(As I recall it, you intentionally kept the attendance restricted
and were the sole attendee from the NSC staff.} While I do
rnot recognize the handwriting or the doodles on the attached
memo, they indicate that Item,5 was_ approved. My own
strong recollection of the warom the meeting was

,that Items 1 through 5 were O.K. and that the only serious

. problems concerned Itemns 6 and 7.

3. I assume that you still want to hear a status report on the
- Fitzgerald operation at the Special Group meeting today and I
will pass this word to both Des and Peter Jessup.

2. "~ Ithink this operation is probably too far down the road to stop,
o” if indeed we do want to stop it. In any event, you will be able
Ty . to find this ocut, by some gentle guestioning, when Des gives

& ¥

#his status report

'%{, e ‘

W, Gordeon Chzase
“'A . .
e ot 4l et O P

Lo e TOP SECRET - SE\TSITIVE EYES ONLY .
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TOP SECRET | April 7, 1964

Memeorandum for Discussion of Covert Program Against Cuba

U. S. covert operations against the Castro regime have recently
been reviewed in the Special Group (54/12), and a number of

issues are presented which require discussion and decision at a
higher level.

The present covert program is designed in support of a general
policy of intense economic and political isolation of Castro,
accompanied by methods short of war to get rid of the Castro
regime. Parts of the program authorized in July 1963 have in
fact been held up for various reasons, and it is now important to
decide whether or not certain substantial and expensive activities

- should be (a) actively continued; {b) held in readiness; {c} reduced,
or {(d} abandoned.

Covert programs against Cuba fall into the following categories:

/Oz%k?y'

e 1. Collection of intelligence, to include the infiltration and ex-.«t\
LA Lok S
filtration of agents and covert supply of agent operations.

L‘li'{’(ﬂ/“’“ ..—,—'Recommendatlon. It is unanimously recommended that this pro- \
/i::; Tf""“"': J:.Lgram be continued. sy -
:.‘,pr&?\ w1 s ’ ) ' ‘ \
/2. Covert propaganda aimed to encourage low-risk forms of
' active and passive resistance and to stimulate tension within the \
v />, regime and between Cuba and the Soviet bloc. \\
‘3}‘/ Recommendation: It is recommended that these programs be ‘.’
S continued with regular review of their operational guidelines. |
{
3. Cooperation with other agencies in economic denial by selec- 3‘
tive economic action with respect to products critical to the Cuban i
'U/\/ economy. ' ,/
\/}( Recommendation: It is recommended that this program be con- /
' tinued: : _ » /
4, Attempts to identify and establish contact with potential - ’/
dissident elemenfs near the power centers oif the regime. é\;‘///
\J><'VQ‘J Recommendation: It is recommended that thlS program be con-
4 tinued.
TOP SECRET =~ _ i o
— ' P \f/ s :
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5. Indirect economic sabotage with a low level of visibility and
detection. Programs of this sort involve possible oversezs
. sabotage of Cuban ships and possible addition of contarninating
. __/‘j*\'. 'elements to sensitive Cuban imports (not food).
£ © Recommendation: It is recommended that these programs be
continued. )

- 7/ 6. CIA-controlled sabotage raiding apparatus in Florida which
¢ ~conducted five raids in the summer and fall of 1963, before

o authority for such raids was suspended for political reasons. .

4, Recommendation: Opinion is divided on this issue and it is recom-~
"‘-\‘E{mended that higher authority hear the arguments of different parties.

7. ClA-supported {but not directly controlled) autoncmous Cuban
exile groups operating from Central America. These groups will
begin operations soon unless action is taken to try to stop them.
'Recommendation: Again opinion is divided and it is recommended
that higher authority hear the arguments.

Ev;-»./
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TOP SECRET - EYES ONLY THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

March 4, 1965

MEMORANDUM FOR MR, BUNDY

| SUBJECT: Special Group Meeting - Cuba

Here is some miscellaneous information with regard to your Special Group
meeting this afternoon on Cuba.

1. Artime Cut-off - As you know, State is pressing to cut off Artime, largely
because of his recent irresponsible activity. CIA opposes State on this one
for the usual reasons. DOD, reportedly, will also take a somewhat reluc-

' tant line on cutting off Artime. Vance may express the view that a cutoff
will drive Artime up the wall and that he will go off and do something that
could cause us real trouble vis-a-vis our present conflict with the East.

For example, he might go off and sink a Soviet ship, DOD would probably
prefer that we phase him out slowly and keep a dialogue going over the course
of the next few months. The advantage of this would be twofold - First, it
would keep Artime quiet; second, his residual power to hurt us, when we
finally do cut him off, will be reduced.

On this one, I am inclined towards the DOD view.

2, Pesticides - The CIA will probably propose a deal whereby we arrange

to have diluted Cuban pesticides., State and DOD are both likely to oppose this
one for such reasons as the following: First, it will mean going to the Dutch
Government; it is questionable whether we want to bring up such a proposal
with that government, especially if we think the odds are high that we will be
turned down. Second, there is the moral issue of whether or not we should
dilute pesticides which were given to the Cubans during the prisoner exchange.
Third, it would be highly embarrassing if this one ever leaked out from one of
the many bases that would have to be touched

i don't like this one either.

3. Support to RECE - One quvestion which will arise today is whether or not to
start giving some low-risk support to RECE, While State and DOD, at the
working levels, originally were in favor of it, they seem to have changed their
position. One reason - some of the arguments which are spelled out in the

TOP SECRET - EYES ONLY

S Copy’
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TOP SECRET - EYES ONLY '

Mr. Bundy . -2~ March 4, 1965

attached memo on the subject. Another reason - State does not want to com-
promise its position on Artlme (i.e., If you give aid to RECE, how can you stop
aid to Artime?). ‘

State and DOD will probably propose that, in turning down RECE, we give
them $17,000. The RECE people apparently had to tap a program fund of
its small contributors to keep going administratively over the last couple
months when Bosch cut them off; they want to return this money to the -
small contributors. Arguments in favor of giving them the money are:

(2) it will lessen the shock of giving RECE a negative reply, (b) they will
not look bad among the exiles (we don't want them to look bad because they
are '"'good guys''), and (c) part of RECE's problem has not been their fault.
We have not been able to give RECE as prompt an answer as we would have
liked,

I continue to be in favor of not getting involved with RECE; Iagree that
$17,000 is a small price to pay for a kiss-off,

4. Keating Gimmick - Both DOD and State are cold to the idea of having
Keating (I understand this now may be changed to Donovan) stir up trouble
between the Soviets and the Cubans. DOD feels that such goings-on might
“be interpreted as some sort of Vietnam play. State feels that such a man
wouldn't get received at a high level; also, there are other ways to do the
job if it needs doing. :

. X :
While I admire CIA's ingenuity and I sincerely think we should keep them
invention-minded, I must say that this one sounds like a Rube Goldberg con-
traption. I am against it. :

5. CIA's Paramilitary Capability - Both DOD and State will probably oppose
CIA's proposal to drop its paramilitary capability. I agree with State and DOD.
that, with the present world situation as it stands, this is a good capability

to keep on hand if we possibly can, I would agree to an abandonment of this
capability only if it were demonstrated that we could crank it up again in =z

very short space of time,

&C

Gordon Chase

TOP SECRET - vEYES. ONLY -
Capyf o
Lyndon B. Johnson library

e

H¥ 50955 DocId:32423566 Page 144




H¥ 50955

TOP SECRET - SENSITIVE

12 November 1964
MEMORANDUM FOR MR. BUNDY

SUBJECT: Policy Toward Cuba

In the attached paper the JCS recommended to the SecDef that
he forward the Army study entitled, '"Square Dance' to the Inter-
departmental Coordinating Commitiee for Cuban Affairs for appropriate
interagency coordination as a basis for further consideration by the

JCS.

In the course of preparing a Chairman's position on '"Square
Dance, ' I pointed out that the covert operations proposed would involve
H P I 5 P

serious injury to Cuban civilians, and probably should not be elected

without very serious provocation -- perhaps greater-than that required
to justify invasion. In addition, even if consistent with US values on
"Jjust'' international behavior, it is highly unlikely that we could undexr -
take such operations without having our role discovered and resulting
in serious international liabilities. Finally, even if '"Square Dancc”
were successfully implemented, there would be no guarantee that the
Cuban government would change its position. DMore likely, Soviet aid
and control would be increased.

As you are aware, Bill Smith participated in this study, though I
understand he did not subscribe to all of its contents. I recommend,

" however, that the White House remain alecof from formal consideration

of ""Square Dance'’ at this stage. Then if the Coordinating Committee
and the JCS should recommend action in accordance with study proposals,
we can consider their recommendations without any precommitment.

~F, R.C. BOWMAN
"\
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SQUARE DANCE (U)

THE PROBLEM
1. To respond to a memorandum® by the Calerl of Stafl,
US Army, tc consider a proposai that the Joint Chiefs of

Staff recommend to the President that the United States

oW e

covértly attack the Cuban sugar industry.
FACTS BEARING ON THE PROBLEM
2. On 21 March 1964, the'Joint Chiefs of Staff in responding**5
to a Presidential request for new ldeas relative to Cuba, S
stated that the President would be advised of any new and - 7
promisging courses of action which could possibly bring pressure g
upon the Cuban regime. ‘ | . , 5

3. On 1 September 1964, the Chief of Staff, US Army, sent 1c

a_memorandum*,,to‘the Joint Chiefs of Staff forwarding. a i1
study on the feasibility of undefmining the Castro reglme 12
by covertly attacking the Cuban sugar industry. The Chiefl 1=

of Staff, US Army, :ecoﬂueﬂqu that the Joint Starfi accomplish 34

L;:éra 52ncy coordination on the sindy proposals; and thaﬁv 15
'the'Joint Chilefs of Staff approve the study and forward 1t , 16
by'memorandum‘to the President, informing him that the Joint 17
Chiefslof Starf qupnort-ﬁhe conclusions and recommendaticns 18
ofbthe study and con ider that the outline program therein i9

provides.an adequate framework for the development of detailed 20
supporting programs and plans for participating agencies. ‘ 21
"4, On 2 Odtqber 1964, the Operations Deputies congidered 22

the 'recommendations of the Chief of Staff, US Afmy, and agreed 23

to refer the matter to the Joint Staff for the preparation 24
of a report. | - . 2z
# Attachment ©o JCO 2°o /Qif
*-‘_xjuaclosma to JCS ¢304/218 -3 - i}gpy

iyndnn B Sahnsan Mi‘fas’y

-k e

P0P SECRET - SZNQILIUD
J-5 2304/24L 5 o 3.

HW¥ 50955 DocId:32423566 Page 148



H¥W 50955

______

s (()J\:(D Q})‘rI/’JT

TOP SECRET -~ SENSITIVE .

TOP SECRET - SENSITIVE = - RS

DocId:32423566 Page 149

5. On 5 October 1964, the Joint Chiefs of Staff were
presented with a briefing on the study and discussed some
of the issues of the proposed actions.

DISCUSSION

6. For discussion, see Appendix A,

| CONCLUSIONS

7. The Joint Chiefs or Staff continue to believe that the
ultimate us objectiﬁe toward Cuba must be to establish a
government in Cuba that 1s acceptable to the United'States.

’ 8; The.proposal to covertly attack the.Cuban sugar
indusﬁry is within existing or attainable capabilities and
marits consideration by other appropriate governmental
agencies as another option, in concert with other actlons,
for causing the collapse. of the Castro regime.

S. The Joint Cﬁiefs of Staff recognizé that there are
possible politicalbconsequences which could result’from
proof of US involvement in a prONPam'Quch as that nropO&cd

10. ‘The Int _rdep rtmental Cooralnathg Committee for
Cuban Affairs is the proper agency to accomplish the inter-~
agen ‘cy oordipation.

11 ”he S*ud] sqould be forxarded to the Secretarj of

Deienbp for refgrrdl to the Interdepartmental Cocrdinating

Com nlLtoe for Cuban Alralrs for comment and recomunendation

‘prellminary to subm1551on to the President by the Joint
Ch“els of Staff. | | |
. REGOMMENDATIONS
12. It is rebommended»that:
| a. The memorandum in the Enclosure, together with 1t

pQleCbS A, B, and C, which reflects the above conclu-

- 8lons be forwarded t@ﬂﬁbQWSQQ?QF??Kfo“QQ?GQSQLM
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b. This péper NOT be forwarded to the commanders of
unifled or speéified commands.

¢. This paper NOT be forwarded to US officers assig cned
to NATO activities.

d. This paper NOT be forwarded to the Chairman; Us
Delegation, United Natiohs Military Staff Committee.

Lction Officer: Captain J. O, Sherman, USN
J~5, Extension 78920
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ENCLOSURE

DRAFT

MEMORANDUM FOR THE SECRETARY OF DEFENSE

Subject: Cuban Actions (U)

1. On 21 March 1964, the Joint Chiefs of Staff, in respond-

dng to a Presidential request for new ideas relative to Cuba,

stated that the President would be advised of any new and

promiging coursesgs of action which could possibly bring

pressure upon the Castro regime.

2. The Joint Chiefs of Staff have completed a review of a
study whioh examines morld sugﬂr ecoaomlcs and the vulner
ablilities of Cuba's sugar industry. The studj proposes an
butline program which would undermine Castro's economy,
deprive him of conveftiblé currency, and cause political
instablility in Cuba through bovert attacks against Cuba's
sugar industry»coupied with US‘stabilization actions on tie
world sﬁgar market. Basically, the proposallenvisions a
three- to six—year program, beginning with a 30 per cent
reduction of anticipated 1966 Cuban sugar production, by
introducing aerially from*dff~shore, a sugar cane‘plant
parasite,:Bunga.f Subséquently,»the economic and political

dlstuwoﬂoces caused by thls attack could be exacerbated and

'explo*ted by suoh Weasu”es as snreadlng hoof~-and-mouth disease

among ‘draft animals, controlllng rainfall by cloud seeding,
minihg canéfields, burning cane, ana directihg other acts
of conventional sabotage against the cane milling and
transportation systems.‘

Sy e

GROUP. 1 o o
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3..mhe Joint Chiefs of Staff continue to believe that the

u”tima e U3 ODJ@LulVG goward Cuba amust be to establish a

vovernjeﬁt in Cuba that 1s acceptable to the United States.

Y

The concept.of attacking the Cuban

6]

ugar indus+r” by covert

[a)

means would furnish ancther option to the United Staﬁes in
bringing aboubt the collapse of the Casftro regimé.

L, Although the Joint Chiefs of Staff rccognize the
pessible polltical consequences from proof of the
ment in such a program, they belleve that proposais related
to bthe expansion of US influence over-tne world SL rar market,
the stabilizatiqn of the free market; and the covert intro-
duction of.Bunga‘into Cuba, merit serious chsideration.
Othér Torms of éttack opozed in the study. might be taken

subzequentvly to explolt resulting economic and political

turbulence. Additicnal discussion is provided in Appendix A

5. It 1s recommended that the attached draft memorandun

~

(Lppendix B) and study (Appendix C) be forwarded to the

Interdecartmental Coordinating Commititee for Cuban A falwrs
for appropriate interagency coordination and comment as a :

Lon_ox further recommendation by. the

[P e e ermae e e an

L ﬁopy
‘Lyndon B, B jehnson Lahrary
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APPENDIX A

CONSIDERATIONS OF A PROPOSAL TO ATTACK
COVERTLY THE CUBAN SUCGAR INDUSTRY

“

1. The ultimate success of the proposed program would

depend, 1in part, upon the effectiveness of the economic
controle for the stabilization of world sugar prices.
It would serve no purpose to reduce Cuba'ls total annual

procduction of sugar if a subsequent rise in the price of

sugar could net the Castro regime the same amount of

ot

convertible currency as it had before the program was

undertaken, The arguments and raticnale in favor of the

e

economic proposalsg in the study appear to have validity.
However, world economics is a most complex subject and
involves many variable factors, The important points on
economic contfols should be coordinated with appropriaté
agenéies in the government having responsibility for such
matters,

2. Assuming that success of the actioné cf the cutline
program can be achieved, 1t must be acknowledged that this
would nct assure the downfall of the Castro Government, or
that if it did fall, a government friendly to the United
States ﬁould be installed, Russia has too much at stake,

polltically, to allow an overthrow of a communist regime

for economic reasons alone, Success of the proposed actions

wonld, however, create serious difficulties for the Castro
Government and would be an additional means of exerting

pressure against that government.

Copy
Lyndon B. lohnson Library
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10
11

12
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3. There are disadvantages to the prograﬁ proposed by
the study. The approval for implementation of such a
concept would introduce a new dimenslon into cold war
methods and would require a majbr change in national
pollcy. There 1s the possibility of retaliation in the
event of discovery. There 1s also an obvious political
risk assocliated with this propQSal, Shbuld ény credible
evidence of US involvement ever be oﬁtained, the political
loss to the United States would be great. Quite apart
Irom the propaganda impact of such discovery, the influence
of the United States in international organizations such
as the United Nations and the Organization of American
States would be impaired seriously.

L, Nevertheless. it is the responsibility of the Joint
Chiefs of Staff to keep the Secretary of Defense and the
Eresident apprised of the capabilitiss of the military
egtablishment, The subject study presents measures which
chould be consildered, and if found to be acceptable after
coordination wiﬁh avpropriate government agencies i1t wouldd
represent another option for positive actions against the
Castro regime. | |

5. NSAM 213% dated 8 January 1963, established a
committee to coordinate the management of ali aspects
of US pclicy toward Cuba, The President looks to the
Interdepartmental Coordinating Committee for Cuban Affairs
for the effective coordination of the execution of policy
decisions and for timely recommendations on new courses
of action. The subject study should be referred to this
committes for the n cessary coordination preliminary to
reporging to ths President. .
- Copy
¥ Enclosure to JCS 2304/:3_3?3“3% D. Iohnson Library
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provide milltary advic> to fthe Comronder in Chicf and the

Szecretary of Defence, IU is zppropriate, therefore, that

P K. R T ~ )

a matter such as the propczals under conglideratlion, L
sent to the Secretary of Defense wlth the recommendcation
that the study be foruwarded to the Interdepavimental

Cocrdinating Cemmittee for coordination and conment a2 o

bozle Dor consglderztion of further recommendations by tho
Joint Chiefls of Stzif.
| Copy
Lyndon B. Johnsen Library
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APPEIDIX B
DRAFT
MEMORANDUM IFOR THE COORDINATOR, INTERDEPARTMENTAL
COORDINATING COMMITTEE IFOR CUBAN AFEAIRS
Subject: Cuban Actions (U)

1. On 21 March 1964, the Joint Chiefs of Staff informed -1
the President that they would continue to review the probien 2
of putting anl ional pﬂessure on Castro and that the 3
President would be advised 1f any new and promising courses 4

- of action were uncovered, 5

2. The Joint Chiefs of Staff have forwarded a study on 6

the feaslibility of ungeﬂminlng the Castro regime by attack- 7
"ing the Cuban sugar industry. The study examlnes the world 3
sugar market and the vulnerabilities of’Cubé}S sugar industry, 9
and proposes a phased interagency program which would: 10
a, Initially reduce Cuban sugar production by 11
approximately 30 per cent from the anticipated 1966 12
production level, : ' 13

b. Expand US influence in the world sugar market .. 14

by assignment of quotas and other actions to insulate 15

the free market from the effects of Cuban sugar losses. 16

3. Apart from economic measures, the proposals made in 17
the study are within existing or attainable military capa- 18
bilities, Several actions are proposed, Key among these 16
1s the introduction into Cﬁba of Bunga, a plant parasite 20
against sugar cane. It appears feasible to introduce 21
gradﬁally Bunza into Cuba and maintain a basis for plausibly 22
lisavowling US involvement, 23

GrouP 1 rpy ,
FXCLUDE PRCATAUTOMATTIC DOWNGRADING
~ Lyndon® &CB@#%@R leb rary
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L, Mindful of the risks sttending such actLunb, Lthe Joint 1
Chiefs of Staff have reviewed the vroposals bf the study and 2
alieve that They offcr en ovtlion [or cxerving new presiures 3
against Costro. They belilieve that provossle related tTo the Ly
expaonsion of U3 influence over éhe world sussr merket, tho 5
stabiiization of The free mariet, and the covert introduction 6.
of Bunga into Cube, merit secrious conciderallion, Thier forms it
of attack pronposed in tThe study might b taken gubzeguent 1 3

to exploit reoulfting economic and polifical turbulence

o

orwerded nerewlth wilth o recusst tha

2o

Che outline prograom of

ct
g
O

the concept and actiong proposed in

the study be coordineted by vour commliittee with other govern-—

-
o

mental departmente end sgencicz, Upon completion of wvour 13
review end coordination, it i3 further réqueczted bQoL your 14

comments be made available to the Seceretary of Defense and 15
the Joint Chiefs of Staff. 16
Copy
TOP SECRET -~ SENSTTIVE
) | n j; g
Lyndon B. Johnson Lihrary.
ke Rt N P IR B A T R ']"».':'f 3
(Revlsed by Decisien N lovestien 10355
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APPLNDIX C

Army Report on

SQUARE DANCE (U)

(See Attachment to JCS 2304/24l,
beginning on vage 6 of the white attachment)

- Copy
Lyndon B. Johnson Library
TOP SECRET - SENSITIVE 6 ' Appendix C
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A Report by the J-5

on .

SQUARE DANCE (U)

FIRST CORRIGENDUM

o At fthe request of the originator, holders are requested
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the attached revised page 7, and destroy the

superseded page 1in accordance with security regulations.
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MEMORANDUM FOR SENIOR STAFF ' oy g5(;. o
SUBJECT: Iﬁspection of Classified Documents at LBJ Library Related to
Covert Actions Ageainst Cuba
FROM: Loch Johnson
Among the many documents wihich I examined at the Johnson Library in ;;wf

Texas this past week is one that I find particularly alarming. I wish
Lo draw it to your attention.

The document in guestion is from the JCS to the Secretary of
Defense, dated 30 October 1964, The subject is a proposed covert
action against Cuba, with the code name SQUARE DANCE,

On 21 March 1964, the JCS responded to a Presidential request for
nev ideas relstive to Cuba by advising the White House that any new
promising c¢ourses of action to undermine the Castro regime would be
brought to the President's attention. Apparently their first bright
new idea was SQRUARE DANCE, outlined in the 30 October document (attached).
The proposal envisioned the destruction of the Cuban economy by intro-
~ducing aerially from off-shore a sugar cane plant parasite called

Bungs. ‘The program would begin with a 30 per cent reduction of antici-

pated Cuban sugar production (see page 6) and within three-to-six

years Lhe ruination of the sugar industry would be achieved. "The Ll
economic and political disturbances caused by this attack could be %gﬂ=
exacerbaled and exploited," continues the JCS memo, "by such measures —

as spreading hoof-and-mouth disease smong draft animals, controlling
rainfall by cloud seeding, mining canefields, burning cane, and direct-
ing other acts of conventional sabotage against the cane milling and
transportation systems" (6, cmphasis sdded). In sum, SQUARE DANCE
"would furnish another option to the United States in bringing about
the collapse of the Castro regime'" (7).

In Appendix A of the SQUARE DANCE proposal, the memo notes that -
the approval for implementation of the program "would introduce a new
dimension into c¢old war methods and would require a major change in
national policy.” Indeed it would—or at least one hopes we have not
used such methods before! The proposal is nothing less thsn a variant
of germ warfere which would have had seriocus consequences for the
civilian population. "

At this point we do not know what happened to the SQUARE DANCE
concept. It may never have been implemented at all, even partially.
(The covering memo written by Bowman, an NSC staffer, to Bundy suggests
that the White House was skeptical toward the idea.) To me, though,

o
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the mere writing of this kind of proposael is a reprehensible first stiep
toward the worst kind of foreign policy mischief. I find it even more
repugnant than contingency plans {or assassination. These are not the
kinds of recommendations which should filter up to the White House from
the intelligence community. The agencies must have a better sense of
what is acceptable policy, legally and morally. As in the Huston Plan,
the White House was confronted here with a series of illegal and un-
ethical optiohs. The result of SQUARE DANCE would have been parasitic
death for the major plant and animal life in Cuba. The feeble efforts
of the CIA to direct assassination attempts against Castro pale by
comparison with this Army proposal f{or covert action.

T believe SOQUART DANCE descerves our attention. If assassination
is unacceptable, surely too is the widespread destruction of plant
and enimal life through covert germ warfare. Somehow (probably through
hearings and restrictive legislation) the Congress must drive home the
point that there are legal and moral limits to American foreign policy.
These limits mey not be easy to define, but we must try.

liote: On the third page of the second attachment (a "Memorandum for
Discussion of Covert Program Against Cuba' written by Bundy) reference
is made to "possible additlion of contaminating elements to sensitive
Cuban imports (not food)." The cover memo from Gordon Chase (NSC
staffer) indicates that' this proposal received Presidential backing.

¢
'
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ASSASSINATION ALLEGATIONS: Castro

Newspaper accounts report that prior to the -
April 17, 1961 Bay of Pigs invasion, the CIA either directly
or thr/ogsgert Maheu inlisted the aid of Sam Giancana and
Johnny Réselll in organizing assassination attempts against
Castro. The first attempt on Castro's l1ife was on or
about 3/13/61. The first attemﬁ% used poison and it was
hoped that with Castro dead,the invasion plannéd and
executed 3/17/61 would have a greater chance for success.
There were five more attehpts made on Castro's 1ife after

3/17/61. The last was in late February or early March of
1963.

Allegations(from Newspaper sources):

1) The CIA either directly or through Robert Maheu
enlisted Sam Giancana who enlisted Johnny Roselli to =z

orgéanize an assassination team directed at Fidel Castro.

2) Johnny Rosellil headed several missions against
through
Castro from late March or April 1961 / late February or

March 1963.

3) That RFK learned of this CIA-Mafia plan and aborted it.
- es L
4) Roselll receéeived poison capsul/ from the’'CIA which

he gave to Cubans assigned the task of poisoning Castro

WY 50955 DocId:32423566 Page 163



(2)

(4, con't.]

before the Bay of Pigs. One of the Cubans was related

to one of Castro's cooks.

5) The assassination was iIntended to take place before
invasion
the planned Bay of Pigs/in order to insure that CIA

operation's success.

6) The CIA has extended services to Giancana which
included a break-in of Comedian Dan Rowan's Las Vegas

apartment.

7) Roselll worked under the direct supervision of CIA

agents William Harvey and James 0'Connell.

8) Individuals allegedly involved directly or indirectly

wiﬁh Cuban Refugees:

1. Rosellil

2. Maheu

3. Hunt

4, Liddy

5. Giancana

6. James 0'Connel

7. William Harvey
Questions:

1) Who was COS of JMV wave in Miami from 1960-1963?

2) Was there any positive effort among Cuban nationals
to determine if there were any Castro intelligence

agent information?

HW 50955 Docld: 32423566 Page 164



(3)

3) Did any contacts or agents within the Cuban refugees
ever speak of or sequest an attempt to be made on
Castro's 1life? If so, how was the situation handled?

L) In preparation for the Bay of Pigs was the assassination
or neutralization of Castro seen as a desirable and
positive step towards the success of the invasion?

5) Were any private raids against Cuba conducted by
Cuban nationals?

6) Was the CIA aware passively or were such matters
made known to the agency by the Cuban nationals in
advance?

7) Did the CIA ciear such actions?

8) Was the CIA aware of Roselli's actions?

9) Did the CIA through whatever means enlist the aid of

o -Johnny Roselli?

10) At any time has the CIA been associated with Sam
Giancana?
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